
  Page 1 
 

 
 
 

 

Tuesday, May 12, 2015  
 

 
7:00 PM Regular Council Meeting 

1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation 

3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Recognitions and Presentations 

a. Employee Milestones 

i. Jo Ann Myers – 15 years of service  (May 1st) 

b. 2014-15 VHSL Basketball  State Champs – Altavista High School 

5. Public Comment  
 
 This portion of the meeting is to receive comments from the public on items not included in this agenda.  

Citizens should sign up prior to the start of the meeting.  The Council is interested in hearing your concerns, but 
may take no action or deliberate on the subject matter at this time.  Topics requiring further investigation will 
be referred to the appropriate town officials or staff and may be scheduled for a future agenda.  Each speaker 
limited to 3 minutes with a total of 15 minutes allotted for this purpose. 

 
6. Consent Agenda 

NOTE:  All items under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the Town Council and will be 
enacted by one motion and vote.  There will be no separate discussion of items unless a request by a 
Council Member is made prior to the time of the Town Council voting on the motion.  In such an 
event, the item will be removed, without debate, from the general order of business and considered 
in its normal sequence. 

 
a. Minutes –  Budget Work Session April 14th; Regular Meeting April 14th ; Work Session April 28th     
b. Monthly Finance Reports 

i. Invoices 
ii. Revenues & Expenditures Report 
iii. Reserve Balance/Investment Report 

c. Departmental Reports 
 

7. Public Hearings 

a. FY2016 Budget and Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 

 

 
 

Town of Altavista 
 

Meeting Agenda 
Town Council Meeting 

J.R. “Rudy” Burgess Town Hall 
510 7th Street 

Altavista, VA  24517 



Town Council Meeting Agenda   Tuesday, May 12, 2015 
 
 
 

8. New/Unfinished Business 

a.  DRO/Section 86-424-1 Ordinance Amendment 

b. DHCD Telecommunications Grant 

c. Consideration of Reimbursement Resolution for Project 1B “Main Street Waterline 

Replacement” and Melinda Tank High Pressure Zone Project 

 
9. Reports 

a. Town Manager’s Report 
 

10. Informational Items/Late Arriving Matters 

a. Correspondence/Articles 

b. Calendars  - May & June 

 
11. Matters from Council 

 
12. Closed Session 

Section 2.2-3711 (A) (3) – Discussion or consideration of disposition of public property, where 
discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy 
of the public body. 

 
Section 2.2-3711 (A) (5) – Discussion concerning a prospective business or industry or the expansion 
of an existing business or industry where no previous announcement has been made of the 
businesses’ or industry’s interest in locating or expanding its facilities in the community. 

 
13. Adjournment 

 
UPCOMING COUNCIL MEETINGS/ACTIVITIES 

(All meetings are at Town Hall unless otherwise noted) 

Tuesday, May 26th @ 5:00 p.m.  Town Council Work Session 

Tuesday, June 9th @ 7:00 p.m.  Town Council Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, June 17th   IALR PCB Conference (Danville) 

Thursday, June 18th   IALR _WWTP EOP Visit 

Tuesday, June 23rd @5:00 p.m.  Town Council Work Session 

 

 
Notice to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act:  Special assistance is available for disabled persons addressing Town Council. 
Efforts will be made to provide adaptations or accommodations based on individual needs of qualified individuals with disability, 
provided that reasonable advance notification has been received by the Town Clerk’s Office.  For assistance, please contact the Town 
Clerk’s Office, Town of Altavista, 510 Seventh Street, Altavista, VA  24517 or by calling (434) 369-5001. 
 
Thank you for taking the time to participate in your Town Council meeting.  The Mayor and Members of Council invite and 
encourage you to attend whenever possible because good government depends on the interest and involvement of citizens. 
 



 
 
 

 
ALTAVISTA TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda Item Summary - Staff Report 
 
 
Date:  May 7, 2015 
 
To:  Mayor Mattox and Council members 
 
FROM: Waverly Coggsdale, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Recognitions/Presentations 
 

 

 
Employee Recognitions 
 
 

• Jo Ann Myers – 15 years of service to the Town   (5/1/2010) 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution for the Altavista High School 2015 State Basketball 
  
 
 
 
 

 



Regular Council Meeting—April 14, 2015 

 
The meeting of the Council of the Town of Altavista was held in the Council Chambers   
of the J.R. Burgess Municipal Building, 510 Seventh Street on April 14, 2015 at 7:00 
p.m. 
 
1. Mayor Mattox called the meeting to order and presided.   
           
2. Pastor David Sage, Grace Community Church, gave the invocation. 

 
Council members 
 present:    Mayor Michael Mattox 
     Mrs. Micki Brumfield 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  
      Mr. Charles Edwards 
     Mr. Tracy Emerson 
     Mr. Timothy George 
     Mr. Jay Higginbotham 
   
 Also present:   Mr. J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Town Manager 
     Mr. Daniel Witt, Assistant Town Manager 
     Mrs. Tobie Shelton, Finance Director 
     Captain Barry Stocks, Altavista Police Department 
     Mr. David Garrett, Public Works/Utilities Director 
     Mr. Steve Bond, Wastewater Treatment Director 
     Mr. John Eller, Town Attorney 
     Mrs. Mary Hall, Administration 
 

3. Mayor Mattox asked if there were any questions regarding the agenda. 
 
      A motion was made by Mr. George, seconded by Mr. Emerson, to approve the   

agenda. 
               

Motion carried:  
VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  
     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 
     Mr. Charles Edwards  Yes 
     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   
   

4. Recognitions and Presentations 
 
a. Employee Milestones 

 
i. Vernon Brown-Retirement 

 
Mayor Mattox recognized and presented Mr. Vernon Brown with the following 
resolution, thanking him for his many years of service to the Town of Altavista: 

 
A RESOLUTION IN RECOGNITION OF THE  

RETIREMENT OF TOWN EMPLOYEE VERNON D. BROWN 
 
 

WHEREAS, Vernon Brown was hired by the Town of Altavista on July 30, 1979 as a Laborer in the 
Department of Public Works; and 

 
WHEREAS, Vernon Brown has been a loyal employee of the Town of Altavista for the past 35 years and 8 
months and retired effective April 1, 2015; and 

 
WHEREAS,  Mr. Brown has demonstrated extensive knowledge, skill and experience in the performance of 
his job and retired from the position of Meter Reader in the Utility Division of the Department of Public 
Works; and  

 



Regular Council Meeting—April 14, 2015 

WHEREAS, Vernon Brown was a well known employee in the community as he went about his duty of 
accurately reading citizen’s water meters and performing other significant and important duties, always 
displaying courteous and kindness; and 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Town Council of the Town of Altavista thanks Vernon 
Brown for his years of service and recognizes the contributions he has made and wishes him a happy 
retirement. 

 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       Michael Mattox, Mayor 
 
 

Attested:   ____________________________________ 
                 J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Town Manager 

 
A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mrs. Brumfield, to adopt the 
presented resolution. 

 
Motion carried:  
VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 
Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Charles Edwards  Yes 
     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 
 
ii. James Moore-5 Years of Service 

 
Mayor Mattox recognized Mr. James Moore, Public Works Department, for 5 
years of service to the Town of Altavista. 

 
b. 2014 VHSL Football State Champs—Altavista High School 

 
Mayor Mattox recognized the 2014 Altavista High School VHSL Football State 
Champions with the follow resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION COMMENDING THE ALTAVISTA HIGH SCHOOL COLONELS,  
VIRGINIA HIGH SCHOOL LEAGUE’S GROUP 1A STATE FOOTBALL CHAMPIONS 

 
WHEREAS, the Altavista High School football team triumphantly captured the 2014 Virginia High School 

League Group 1A, state football championship on December 13, 2014, by defeating the Essex High 
School Trojans at Salem Stadium; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Altavista High School Colonels football team completed the season undefeated (15-0) and 

on a 25 game winning streak while winning the title in back to back years; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Altavista High School Colonels roared through the regular season with a perfect record 
avenging last year’s only loss by shutting out the Gretna Hawks 38 – 0 and entered the playoffs as 
the number two seed in the Group 1A East Division; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Colonels combined an explosive offense with a stingy defense, outscoring opponents by a 
margin of 620 to 92 through the regular season and playoffs; and  
  

WHEREAS, Altavista High School began the post season in search of another state championship, by 
dispatching West Point High School, 63 – 0 in the first round and Central Lunenburg High School, 
35 – 0 in the second round; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Colonels would next face the highly touted and undefeated Parry McCluer “Fighting  
Blues”, who quickly scored prompting the Colonels to come from behind and pull away for a 35-10 
victory at English Field; and   
  

WHEREAS, the Colonels for the second year in a row would have to go on the road to face a Group 1A 
West Division number one seeded and undefeated opponent, the Honaker High School Tigers; 
utilizing a suffocating defense that forced seven turnovers and an efficient offense the Colonels left 
the artificial turf with an impressive 31-7 victory and a rematch with the Essex Trojans in the state 
championship final; and   
 

WHEREAS, under a beautiful crisp December day the Colonels were set to take on the revenge minded 
Group 1A East Division number one seed Essex High School Trojans, for the second consecutive year 
for the state title; the Trojans scored first but the Colonels battled back and ultimately took the lead 



Regular Council Meeting—April 14, 2015 

stopping the Trojans on a late two-point conversion to preserve the victory by a final score of 22-20; 
and   

 
WHEREAS, the Colonels not only ended the 2014 season as State Champions but as back to back 

champions and earned their third title in a six year span; the Altavista High School Colonels football 
team, Head Coach Mike Scharnus, his coaching staff, the administration, students and fans can 
celebrate and be proud of the many accomplishments of this year’s team; now, therefore 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Altavista Town Council commends the Altavista High School Colonels football team 
for their outstanding 2014 season and for winning the 2014 Virginia High School League, Group 1A, 
state football championship with a record of 15 wins and 0 loss; and   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution is presented to Altavista High School as an 
expression of the admiration of the Town of Altavista and its citizens for the championship 
performance of the 2014 Altavista High School football team. 

       
       
          _____________________________ 

Michael E. Mattox, Mayor 
Attested:   _____________________________________ 

                            J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Town Manager 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mr. George, to adopt the 
resolution honoring the 2014 Altavista High School VHSL Football State 
Champions. 
 
Motion carried:  
VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 
Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Charles Edwards  Yes 
     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

      
5. Public Comment 

 
Mayor Mattox asked if anyone would like to speak on anything not listed on the 
agenda.  No one came forward.  

6. Consent Agenda 
 
a. Minutes- Regular Meeting March 10th ; Budget Work Session March 23rd ,  Work 

Session March 24th   
b. Monthly Finance Reports 

i. Invoices 
ii. Revenues & Expenditures Report 
iii. Reserve Balance/Investment Report 

c. Budget Amendments/Department Transfers 
d. Board of Zoning Apeals Annual Report 
e. Departmental Reports 

 
A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mrs. Brumfield, to approve the 
items as listed on the consent agenda. 

 
Motion carried:  
VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 
Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Charles Edwards  Yes 
     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 
      

7. Public Hearings 
 
None at this time. 



Regular Council Meeting—April 14, 2015 

 
8. New/Unfinished Business 

 
a. Utility Project Funding 

 
Mr. Coggsdale advised this item was discussed at the Budget Work Session. 
 

b. “First Reading” FY2016 Budget and Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
 
Mrs. Shelton advised the FY2016 proposed budget, covering the period of 
July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016, has proposed expenditures totaling $7,468,910.   
It is projected that there will be a surplus of $624,360 in the proposed budget 
($477,100 in the General Fund and $147,260 in the Enterprise Fund).  The 
FY2016 proposed budget is based on no increases to the tax rate.  The water 
and sewer rates are proposed to increase by five percent (5%).  The FY2016-
2020 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for the next five years totals $5,144,400 
in expenditures.  The proposed items in the CIP for FY2016 total $1,272,700; 
this does not include funding for the Main Street Waterline Project or the 
Melinda Tank Pressure Zone project.  Adoption of the budget and capital 
improvement plan only appropriates funds for the first year (FY2016) of the 
Capital Improvement Plan; the remaining four years (FY2017-2020) are for 
informational and planning purposes. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. George, seconded by Mrs. Dalton, to set the 
public hearing to receive comment on the purposed FY2016 Budget and 
Capital Improvement Program for May 12, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. 

     
Motion carried:  
VOTE:   Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 
Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Charles Edwards  Yes 
     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 
 

c. Altavista Community Transit System-Title VI Update 
 
Mr. Witt advised the Altavista Community Transit System-Title VI is the 
Federal non discrimination clause and asked Council to adopt the town’s Title 
VI policy.   
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mr. Edwards, to adopt the 
resolution as prescribed.   
 
Motion carried:  
VOTE:   Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 
Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Charles Edwards  Yes 
     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

 
The Altavista Town Council hereby acknowledges the receipt of the ACTS Title VI Implementation Plan 2015-
2018.  Council has reviewed and approves the Plan.  Council is committed to ensuring that no person is 
excluded from participation in, or denied the benefits of ACTS’s transportation services on the basis of race, 
color, or national origin, as protected by Title VI according to Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular 
4702.1B Title VI requirements and guidelines for FTA sub-recipients. 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
Mayor, Town of Altavista                      DATE 
Town of Altavista, Altavista Community Transit System 

 
 



Regular Council Meeting—April 14, 2015 

d. DRO/Section 86-424-1 Ordinance Amendment 
 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the Town Council recently conducted a public hearing on 
text ordinance amendments for the Downtown Revitalization Overlay (DRO) 
district, as well as ancillary design guidelines.  After a follow up meeting, the 
Planning Commission, at the Council’s request, decided to revisit the issue based 
on the input that had been received.   He advised the Planning Commission is 
submitting their recommendation regarding “voluntary” use of the design 
guidelines. 
 
Mr. Witt advised the language the Planning Commission discussed.  The town 
attorney added the following statement:  

 
The Town of Altavista Downtown Revitalization Overlay District Design Guidelines are 
available to assist in the maintenance, restoration, and rehabilitation of exterior 
architectural features.  While not required, voluntary application of the methods and 
principles put forth in that document are recommended and encouraged. 
 
This would be the additional language that would go into Section 86-424-1 of the 
code and the ancillary document guidelines has had any reference to design 
review board removed with everything being voluntary.  Mr. Witt noted if 
someone wanted to file for federal tax credits they would be required to follow the 
Secretary of the Interior’s guidelines.   
 
Mr. Higginbotham asked for additional time to review the documents. 
 
Mr. George questioned the incentives. 
 
Mr. Witt advised there is a reference to incentives stating “incentives will be 
provided at such time Council deems appropriate and are available.” 
 
This item was tabled to the May 12, 2015 Town Council meeting. 
 

9. Reports 
 

a. Town Manager’s Report 
 

  Bedford Avenue Waterline Project (Project 1A) 
 

       Contractor has three crews working on the project.   
  Monthly Construction Meeting Notes were presented to Council. 

 
 WWTP EOP – PCB Remediation 
 

  Response letter sent to VA DEQ on March 31, 2015. 
  Dr. Sowers has implemented his research in the steel caissons. 

Scott Rice, EPA Region III, is working with EPA’s internal management in 
regard to options for continued research for remediation efforts.   Expect to hear 
from Mr. Rice on Wednesday, March 18th. 
 
Mr. Coggsdale mentioned the test results from sampling the south side of the 
pond have been received with only 6 of the 46 being above the 50 parts per one 
million.  He asked if it was time to think about isolating that area and Council 
thoughts on additional sampling.  He advised of some maintenance that needed to 
occur at the pond.   
 
Mr. Higginbotham agreed with isolating the area. 
 



Regular Council Meeting—April 14, 2015 

Mrs. Dalton suggested waiting until the EPA weighs in on the matter.  
 

Mr. Edwards suggested contacting Mr. Larry Robertson with this information and 
seeing what he thinks. 
 
Mr. Coggsdale advised Dr. Lowman plans to record results on one set of plans. 

         
10. Informational Items/Late Arriving Matters 

 
Captain Stocks introduced Patrol Officer Joni Organ to Council.  Officer Organ 
started working for the Town of Altavista Police Department April 13, 2015. 

 
11. Matters from Town Council 
    
12. Closed Session 
 

 I move that the Altavista Town Council convene in closed session in accordance with 
the provisions set out in the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended,  

Section 2.2-3711 (A)(7) – Consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff 
members pertaining a construction contract. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Edwards, and seconded by Mr. Emerson.  

 
      Motion carried:  
      VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 
Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Charles Edwards  Yes 
     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 
 
Mrs. Dalton and Mr. Higginbotham left meeting prior to entering the closed session. 
 

 Council went into closed session at 7:28 P.M. 
      Notice was given that council was back in regular session 8:10 P.M. 
 
                   FOLLOWING CLOSED SESSION: 

A motion was made by Mr. Edwards, seconded by Mr. Emerson, to adopt the 
certification of a closed meeting. 

 
CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING 

WHEREAS, the town council has convened a closed meeting on this date pursuant to 
an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the provisions of The Virginia 
Freedom of Information Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by the  
town council that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia 
law; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the town council hereby certifies that,   
to the best of each member’s knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully 
exempted from open meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the 
closed meeting to which this certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public 
business matters as were identified in the motion convening the closed meeting were 
heard, discussed or considered by the town council. 

 
      Motion carried:  
      VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 



Regular Council Meeting—April 14, 2015 

     Mr. Charles Edwards  Yes 
     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
                             

      Mayor Mattox asked if there was anything else to bring before Council. 
       
      The meeting was adjourned at 8:11 p.m. 
 

______________________________ 
       Michael E. Mattox, Mayor  

 
         ________________________________ 

       J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Clerk 
 



Council Budget Work Session—April 14, 2015 

 
The budget work session of the Council of the Town of Altavista was held in the Council 
Chambers of the J.R. Burgess Municipal Building, 510 Seventh Street on April 14, 2015 
at 6:00 p.m. 
 
1. Mayor Mattox called the meeting to order and presided.   
           

Council members 
 Present:    Mayor Michael Mattox 
     Mrs. Micki Brumfield 
      Mrs. Beverley Dalton  
      Mr. Charles Edwards 
     Mr. Tracy Emerson 
     Mr. Timothy George 
     Mr. Jay Higginbotham 
       
 Also present:   Mr. J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Town Manager 
     Mr. Daniel Witt, Assistant Town Manager 
     Mrs. Tobie Shelton, Finance Director 
     Mr. David Garrett, Public Works/Utilities Director 
     Mr. Steve Bond, Wastewater Treatment Plant  
     Mrs. Mary Hall, Administration 
 

2. Budget Work Session 
 
Mr. Coggsdale advised the purpose of the work session is to look at the budget again 
before scheduling the public hearing at the April 14, 2015 regular town council meeting.  
He presented Council with a memorandum from Mr. Garrett regarding the water tank 
maintenance.  Mr. Garrett received three bids in regards to the maintenance of the tank. 
Copies of the bid tabulation sheet were presented to Council.   Mr. Coggsdale stated over 
the past two years, $50,000 has been included in the budgets for this purpose; these funds 
have gone unused and have been earmarked in Reserves for this purpose.  He added 
$53,000 was included in the proposed FY2016 for this purpose.  The lowest bid requires 
more substantial funding in the first four years and considerably less in the remaining 6 
years of the ten year contract.  Staff provided updated Budget and CIP sheets that reflect 
the inclusion of the low bid on this expense.  With $153,000 accounted for, the additional 
$45,600 would be taken from the proposed surplus in the Enterprise Fund.  The revised 
proposed surplus in the Enterprise Fund would be $147,260.  Mr. Coggsdale noted this is 
an item that is imperative to the well being of our water storage/distribution system.   
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mrs. Brumfield, to authorize Mr. 
Coggsdale to move forward with executing the contract with the lowest bidder in regards 
to maintenance of the water tanks. 
 
Motion carried:  
VOTE:     Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 
Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Charles Edwards  Yes 
     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   
 
Mr. Coggsdale presented Council with information per their request that lays out 
different financing scenarios for the Main Street Waterline Project (1B) and the Melinda 
Tank Pressure Zone project; the estimated total cost for these two projects is $2.5 million.   
He added prior to advertising the budget, it would be beneficial to decide how the Town 
will fund these projects.  He noted a previous memo regarding funds in the Town’s 
reserves that was presented to Council.  If the decision is the debt service route, there is a 
projected surplus in the Enterprise Fund for FY2016 in the amount of $147,260. 



Council Budget Work Session—April 14, 2015 

 
Mrs. Dalton mentioned after these projects are completed, Council will re-elevate the 
other projects. She mentioned Council has been talking about a utility proforma that 
refers to rate increases, not raiding the General Fund.  CIP has to be funded and you have 
to fund your own capital improvements. She sees the rate increases as a giant step 
towards upgrades of deferred maintenance.    
 
Mayor Mattox asked was the goal to use the CIP reserve fund. 
 
Mr. Coggsdale stated it depends on the project; the projects will last 50 years and the 
thought is to spend the cost of the improvement over the life of the improvement.   
 
Mr. Higginbotham felt borrowing 15 to 20 years out is too far.   
 
Mrs. Dalton asked if the debt service could be managed for 10 years and felt the 10 year 
term looked more attractive.   
 
Mayor Mattox asked Mrs. Shelton for the true cost of funding when getting the 
bond/dealing with borrowing.     
 
Mr. George asked if the tank would be used for emergency situations to supply water to 
Abbott. 
 
Mr. Garrett replied they are trying to tie all the tanks together but that Abbott would 
primarily use the Clarion and Dearing Ford tanks. 
 
Mrs. Dalton suggested leaving the budget as is.   
 
Mr. Coggsdale stated at some point Council will need to make a decision for either debt 
service or cash.   
 
It was the consensus of Council to leave the budget as is. 
 
Mrs. Dalton thanked staff for all the background work. 
 
Mr. Coggsdale advised in the FY2016 Proposed Budget there is an estimated 15% 
increase in health insurance costs; the costs greatly exceed the allocated amounts.  The 
figures given are renewals based on current plans.  Mr. Coggsdale advised we can 
proceed with the budget as presented, which includes the 15% increase and take 
appropriate action to amend it when the final decision is made on the health insurance 
costs if there is not enough information to make a decision. 
 
Mrs. Shelton advised the renewal rates for health care cost have been received and far 
exceed the allocated amounts.  The drastic increase is a result of high dollar claims.  
According to the Aetna rep, our group has not run well for the past two years and there 
are some significant future claims.  It is the future expected costs based on conditions 
Aetna are aware of that are driving the high increase.  Mrs. Shelton stated it is the 
consultant’s opinion if we bid out, we would not receive anything back that would be less 
costly due to the high claims costs in the current group.  She noted she recently received 
Aetna product information which includes HSA and HRA products.  She asked for time 
to review these options, move the health care discussion to the April 28th work session 
and asked that the health care consultant attend.  Mrs. Shelton also asked that the budget 
be advertised as presented which includes a 15% increase in the health insurance and take 
the appropriate action to amend when the final decision is made on the costs.   
 
Mr. Higginbotham questioned the shared percentage. 
 



Council Budget Work Session—April 14, 2015 

Mrs. Shelton advised the town pays 80% towards the employee and the employee pays 
20%.  The town pays 40% towards dependants.  She noted currently the town offers its 
employees three plans; this formula is only for the $1,000 deductible.   
 
Mr. Higginbotham requested quotes for higher deductibles to be available at the April 
28th work session. 
 
Mr. Coggsdale referred to the Town Attorney’s request for a 2% increase. 
 
Mayor Mattox suggested entering this figure into the budget as a placeholder and Council 
will conduct an evaluation in April.   
 
It was the consensus of Council to enter this figure as a placeholder.  
 
Mr. Coggsdale thanked staff for the great job preparing the budget. 
 
 
3. Adjournment 
                        
Mayor Mattox asked if there was anything else to bring before Council. 
       
The meeting was adjourned at 6:38 p.m. 
 

______________________________ 
       Michael E. Mattox, Mayor  

 
         ________________________________ 

       J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Clerk 
 



 
COUNCIL WORK SESSION APRIL 28, 2015 

    
 
The work session of the Council of the Town of Altavista was held in the Council Chambers of 
the J.R. Burgess Municipal Building, 510 Seventh Street, on April 28, 2015 at 5:00 p.m. 
 

Council members 
 present:    Mayor Michael Mattox 
     Mrs. Micki Brumfield 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  
     Mr. Tracy Emerson 
     Mr. Timothy George 
     Mr. Jay Higginbotham 
 
Council members 
absent:    Mr. Charles Edwards 
       
 Also present:   Mr. J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Town Manager 
     Mr. Daniel Witt, Assistant Town Manager 
     Mrs. Tobie Shelton, Finance Director 
     Capt. Barry Stocks, Police Department  
     Mr. David Garrett, Public Works/Utilities Director 
     Mr. Steve Bond, Wastewater Treatment Plant 
     Mrs. Mary Hall, Administration 
 
Mr. Higginbotham arrived at 5:03 p.m. 

 
1. Mayor Mattox called the meeting to order and presided. 

 
2. A motion was made by Mr. Emerson, seconded by Mr. George, to approve the agenda as 

presented. 
 

Motion carried:  
VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 
Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 
Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
 

3. Public Comments—Agenda Items Only 
 
Mayor Mattox asked if anyone would like to speak on anything listed on the agenda. 
 
No one came forward. 
 

4. Introductions and Special Presentations 
 

5. Items Contingent for the Regular Meeting 
 

a. Health Insurance Discussion (FY2016 Budget) 
 

Mr. Coggsdale advised Mrs. Shelton would be updating Council on the Health 
Insurance.  He added additional research needs to be done perhaps including a small 
group of employees 
 
Mrs. Shelton advised at the April 14, 2015 Budget Work Session, Council was made 
aware of the drastic increase in health care premiums that was received in the renewal 
for the 2015/2016 plan year.  The costs far exceed the allocated amount in the 
Proposed FY 2016 Budget and the drastic increase is a result of high dollar claims.  
She noted based on the high claim experience as well as discussions with the 
consultant, Ms. Becky Pollard, it was staff’s decision to stay the course and not go out 
to bid. 

 



 
COUNCIL WORK SESSION APRIL 28, 2015 

Mrs. Shelton presented Council with several spreadsheets showing a variety of 
products offered by Aetna, ranging from traditional plans to high deductible plans 
(HDHP) paired with Health Savings Accounts (HSA) or Health Reimbursement 
Accounts (HRA), as well as cost comparisons to our current plan with Coventry.     
Mrs. Shelton advised after reviewing the plan options presented and comparing them 
to the current base plan, $1,000 Deductible through Coventry, staff selected the VA 
HNOnly 2500 HSA.  She explained this is a high deductible, Health Maintenance 
Organization (HMO) Plan paired with a HSA with a $2,500 deductible with no out of 
network coverage.  This plan type reduces the Town’s annual expense for health 
insurance by $22,900 over the current plan, as well as reduces monthly premiums for 
all levels of coverage with the exception of Employee plus Spouse. To help make the 
transition from a traditional plan to a HDHP smooth and successful for everyone, 
staff is recommending an employer contribution of $2,000 per participating 
employee, made in installments, resulting in an estimated cost of $88,000.  She noted 
the thought of a HDHP may sound scary to employees who are use to a co-pay 
system.  Staff feels the financial contribution will play an essential part in both HSA 
adoption and employee satisfaction as well as show the Town’s dedication and 
commitment to the program.  All levels of coverage will experience a savings in 
premiums, with the exception of Employee plus Spouse coverage.  In an effort to keep 
employees participating in the base plan (1,000 deductible) with Employee plus 
Spouse level of coverage whole, Staff is asking to supplement their level of coverage.  
Employees in this category are going to experience an increase of $62.74 in their 
monthly premium.  Supplementing the employees’ premium will result in an annual 
cost of $1,500.  She mentioned there are two employees participating in the base plan 
with this level of coverage. The overall cost to implement Staff’s recommendation 
will cost $339,000.  This amount includes transitioning to the HDHP/HSA 
($227,078), contributing to the employees HSA ($88,000) and supplementing the 
Employee plus Spouse coverage for current base plan participants ($1,506), as well as 
dental ($19,695) and an enhanced vision rider that was eliminated with the renewal 
last year ($2,500).  Although the overall cost is an increase from FY 2015, the 
recommendation is $10,821 under the allocated amount in the Proposed FY 2016 
Budget.  Mrs. Shelton noted there have been some questions/concerns from 
employees and suggested a committee be formed to discuss these concerns.   

 
Mrs. Brumfield asked if there was a network of doctors that have to be used. 
 
Mrs. Shelton advised she has researched the hospitals and doctors and the list is fairly 
large in the network.   
 
Mrs. Becky Pollard, consultant, advised what was being looked at was the HN Only 
network; a takeoff of HMO network.  If an employee is going outside of the state of 
Virginia they can access HMO doctors in any state.  Normal HMOs do not have an 
out of network benefit or if they do it is higher deductibles and lower co insurance.  
With Aetna, their HMO network is pretty much the same as the PPO network in the 
state of Virginia; out of state going to Duke, John Hopkins, Bowman Grey; they are 
in the HMO network.  Aetna has a huge network; PPO and HMO access.   
 
Mayor Mattox questioned if nothing was done the percentage increase; 40% increase? 
 
Mrs. Shelton stated if nothing was done and we migrated to the Aetna $1,000 
deductible, the cost would be $400,400. 
 
Mayor Mattox questioned the cost for an employee on the family plan. 
 
Mrs. Shelton responded $2,000 which is the full premium; not a split between Town 
and employee.   
 
Mrs. Becky Pollard advised Council if they would look back to the 2013 renewal with 
Local Choice the proposed family renewal rate was $1,555, Key Advance 250 went 
from $1,269 to $1,442.   
 
Mrs. Dalton asked suppose an employee is out of town and has an emergency. 



 
COUNCIL WORK SESSION APRIL 28, 2015 

 
Ms. Pollard responded if it is life threatening or critical care, the coverage would be 
the same as if you were in the network.   
 
Mrs. Dalton thanked staff for their hard work and the effort it has taken to get this far 
and agreed with taking more time to get some discussions going with town 
employees. 
 
Ms. Pollard explained some of the co-pay plans which were detailed on the presented 
spreadsheets.   
 
Mr. Emerson questioned the co-pay on prescriptions. 
 
Mrs. Shelton stated the payment goes towards the deductible.  
 
Mr. Emerson mentioned he has HSA with Campbell County and does not like this.   
 
Ms. Pollard noted every company has a different twist on the HSA.  She mentioned 
the employees have to be prepared; they will receive the discounted medical rate 
except for prescriptions which will be applied to the deductible.  If comparing plans, 
the out of pocket maximums average about $6,350 on an individual and double that 
on a family.   
 
Mrs. Dalton stated one thing is to keep yourself as healthy as possible. 
 
Mrs. Brumfield agreed and suggested offering the employees some incentives for 
being in wellness programs.   
 
Ms. Pollard noted with the size of the employee base the Town is pooled and 
reminded Council the Town has 6 large claims totaling over $227,000 (which is 
unusual for a group the size of the Town).   
 
Mayor Mattox asked Council if there was a problem with going out to bid again and 
looking at Local Choice.  He felt all the options should be looked at.  He asked for 
volunteers for the Health Insurance Committee.   
 
Mr. Emerson and Mrs. Dalton agreed to serve on the Health Insurance committee. 
 
Mr. Emerson noted the biggest gripe he has heard about the insurance plan with 
Campbell County is the prescription coverage.   
 
Mayor Mattox noted this ad hoc committee will stand for this year only. 

 
b. Tank Maintenance Contract 

 
Mr. Garrett addressed Council and advised he is moving forward on the tank 
maintenance ($50,000 in reserves and $50,000 in this year’s budget) and asked to be 
allowed to use the $100,000 in this cycle to begin the tank maintenance project the 
first of May 2015.  He noted contracts for each of the tanks has been worked out.  The 
remaining $87,304 could be picked up in the next budget cycle.   

 
A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mr. Emerson, to allocate the 
$50,000 from reserves into the 2015 budget and approve the remainder of the monies 
at a later date.    

 
Motion carried:  

                VOTE:   Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  
     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 
     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 



 
COUNCIL WORK SESSION APRIL 28, 2015 

 
Mr. Garrett noted he is working on the nuisance at the pond which appears to be 
turtles.  

 
c. IALR’s Conference-Thursday Town Sponsored Luncheon 

 
Mr. Coggsdale asked for the number of Council members interested in attending the 
Institute of Advanced Learning and Research Conference scheduled for June 17th in 
Danville, Virginia, and the luncheon June 18th at the Altavista Train Station. 

 
A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mrs. Brumfield, to appropriate up 
to $500 towards a luncheon on June 18th at the Altavista Train Station.  

 
Motion carried:  
VOTE:   Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 
Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 
Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

 
 

6. Items Scheduled for the Regular Meeting Agenda 
 

7. Public Comments 
 

8. Closed Session 
 
I move that the Altavista Town Council convene in closed session in accordance with the 
provisions set out in the Code of Virginia, 1950 as amended, for the following purpose: 
 
Section 2.2-3711(A).1 – Evaluation of performance of Town Manager and Town 
Attorney 
 
Section 2.2-3711 (A).3 – Discussion or consideration of the acquisition of real property 
for a public purpose. 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, and seconded by Mr. Emerson. 
 
Motion carried:  
VOTE:   Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  
   Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 
   Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

  
Council went into closed session at 5:45 P.M. 
Notice was given that council was back in regular session 6:20 P.M. 
 
Mr. Higginbotham left the meeting at 6:21 P.M. 
 
 
FOLLOWING CLOSED SESSION: 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mr. Emerson, to adopt the certification 
of a closed meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
COUNCIL WORK SESSION APRIL 28, 2015 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING 
 
WHEREAS, the town council has convened a closed meeting on this date pursuant to an 
affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the provisions of The Virginia Freedom 
of Information Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by the town 
council that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the town council hereby certifies that, to 
the best of each member’s knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the closed meeting to 
which this certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as 
were identified in the motion convening the closed meeting were heard, discussed or 
considered by the town council.  
 
Motion carried:  
VOTE:   Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  
   Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 
   Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Brumfield, seconded by Mrs. Dalton, to approve an 
additional 5% increase in the FY2016 Budget for the Town Manager. 
 
Motion carried:  
VOTE:   Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  
   Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 
   Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 
 

9. Adjournment 
             

 Mayor Mattox adjourned the meeting at 6:25 p.m.  
 
 

______________________________ 
   Michael E. Mattox, Mayor 

 
 

_______________________________________ 
         J. Waverly Coggsdale, Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ALL CHECKS REGISTER                                ACCOUNTING PERIOD 10/2015 
TOWN OF ALTAVISTA                           FROM: 04/01/2015  TO: 04/30/2015 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
CHECK    VENDOR VENDOR                               CHECK             CHECK 
   NO        NO   NAME                                DATE            AMOUNT 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
  33331 9999999 ADA LAVONNE TUCK                04/03/2015             12.91 
  33332       6 ALTAVISTA AREA YMCA             04/03/2015         25,000.00 
  33333     303 ALTAVISTA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE   04/03/2015          5,000.00 
  33334     645 ALTAVISTA MOTORS                04/03/2015            868.87 
  33335      11 AVOCA                           04/03/2015         11,575.00 
  33336 9999999 BURCH JESSALYN NICOLE           04/03/2015              5.56  
  33337     581 BUSINESS SOLUTIONS INC          04/03/2015            500.00  
  33338 9999997 CAREY, PAUL B                   04/03/2015             45.44  
  33339     427 CENTURYLINK                     04/03/2015          2,247.79  
  33340      28 COLUMBIA GAS                    04/03/2015          1,490.58  
  33341     526 DAVENPORT ENERGY INC            04/03/2015            165.66  
  33342       1 DELICIA SMITH                   04/03/2015             50.00  
  33343      71 FAIRPOINT COMMUNICATIONS        04/03/2015            411.74  
  33344 9999997 FARTHING, SHARON                04/03/2015             27.93  
  33345     119 FOSTER ELECTRIC CO INC          04/03/2015          1,302.97  
  33346       1 GREENMASTERS                    04/03/2015            403.19  
  33347      50 GRETNA TIRE INC                 04/03/2015          1,142.86  
  33348      52 HACH COMPANY                    04/03/2015            198.79  
  33349     622 HEYWARD SERVICES INC            04/03/2015            746.39  
  33350     386 IDS SECURITY                    04/03/2015             57.00  
  33351     566 INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP IN  04/03/2015          2,000.00  
  33352      67 ORKIN PEST CONTROL LLC          04/03/2015            243.85  
  33353      72 PHYSICIANS TREATMENT CENTER     04/03/2015            135.00  
  33354     458 SAM'S ON THE MARKET INC         04/03/2015            428.93  
  33355      80 SOUTHSIDE ELECTRIC COOP         04/03/2015          1,200.00  
  33356      35 TREASURER OF VA/VITA            04/03/2015            130.78  
  33357 9999999 TURNES VIRGINIA COTHRAN         04/03/2015              6.50  
  33358     515 DALE TYREE JR                   04/03/2015          1,100.00  
  33359      92 UNIFIRST CORP                   04/03/2015          1,440.47  
  33360      95 UNITED WAY OF CENTRAL VA        04/03/2015            112.00  
  33361     656 WATER MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS INC  04/03/2015            905.56  
  33362 9999999 WOODRUFF HAZEL C                04/03/2015             22.09  
  33363     116 XEROX CORP                      04/03/2015            779.08  
  33364       1 ELMER HANDY                     04/03/2015          1,200.00  
  33365     170 ALTAVISTA ON TRACK              04/08/2015          6,250.00  
  33366     103 BEACON CREDIT UNION             04/08/2015            585.00  
  33367     418 BSW INC                         04/08/2015            895.00  
  33368      32 CONTROL EQUIPMENT CO INC        04/08/2015         19,007.00  
  33369     164 DMV                             04/08/2015            180.00  
  33370     283 ECK SUPPLY CO                   04/08/2015          1,346.08  
  33371      20 J JOHNSON ELLER JR              04/08/2015          1,887.75  
  33372      57 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457 #304  04/08/2015            820.00  
  33373     659 LYNCHBURG CHAMBER OF COMMERCE   04/08/2015             22.00  
  33374       1 MARVIN JONES JR                 04/08/2015             92.65  
  33375     300 NAPA AUTO PARTS                 04/08/2015             98.31  
  33376     454 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC         04/08/2015             81.29  
  33377     625 SAM GREEN VAULT                 04/08/2015            450.00  
  33378     186 THE NEWS & ADVANCE              04/08/2015            561.00  
  33379     660 UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AMERICA)  04/08/2015          1,659.58  
  33380     202 C W WARTHEN                     04/08/2015            429.64  
  33381     657 WINSCHEL ENVIRONMENTAL LLC      04/08/2015            459.35  



  33382     658 WKDE-FM                         04/08/2015            304.00   
  33383      84 ALTAVISTA JOURNAL               04/17/2015             45.00   
  33384     661 BASS SOD FARM                   04/17/2015             75.00   
  33385     461 KATHI BOGERT                    04/17/2015            862.68   
  33386       4 BOXLEY AGGREGATES               04/17/2015          9,995.00   
  33387      12 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC          04/17/2015          2,171.09   
  33388     294 BUSINESS CARD                   04/17/2015         11,379.25   
  33389     583 CAMPBELL COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY  04/17/2015            902.86   
  33390      16 CAMPBELL COUNTY UTILITIES & SE  04/17/2015            394.56   
  33391       1 CHEVIS A SWEARINGEN             04/17/2015            112.22   
  33392       1 CHRIS BRUMFIELD                 04/17/2015            100.00   
  33393      36 DOMINION VIRGINIA POWER         04/17/2015         43,990.90   
  33394     301 ENGLISH'S LLC                   04/17/2015          1,437.25   
  33395     118 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC #75    04/17/2015          9,569.87   
  33396      41 FISHER SCIENTIFIC               04/17/2015            643.02   
  33397      46 GENTRY LOCKE ATTORNEYS          04/17/2015            240.00  
  33398     388 GLENN FELDMAN DARBY & GOODLATT  04/17/2015          1,578.56  
  33399     652 HAWKINS LOCK & KEY CO INC       04/17/2015             84.70  
  33400     644 INSTITUTE FOR ADVANCED LEARNIN  04/17/2015          3,863.98  
  33401      58 INSTRUMENTATION SERVICES INC    04/17/2015            982.50  
  33402     566 INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP IN  04/17/2015            340.00  
  33403       1 JONI ORGAN                      04/17/2015             70.00  
  33404     533 LYNN KIRBY                      04/17/2015            195.00  
  33405     476 LBM OFFICE SOLUTIONS INC        04/17/2015            502.24  
  33406     638 MA DALTON PAINTING CONTRACTOR   04/17/2015            275.00  
  33407     485 NEWMAN TRAFFIC SIGNS INC        04/17/2015          5,812.04  
  33408       1 PAULINE BROWN                   04/17/2015            100.00  
  33409     627 SOUTHERN AIR                    04/17/2015          3,250.05  
  33410     117 SPS VAR LLC                     04/17/2015            245.00  
  33411     101 VIRGINIA EMPLOYMENT COMMISSION  04/17/2015          1,459.29  
  33412     110 VUPS INC                        04/17/2015             93.45  
  33413     354 WILEY & WILSON                  04/17/2015          2,404.00  
  33414     192 WW ASSOCIATES INC               04/17/2015          4,250.00  
  33415     116 XEROX CORP                      04/17/2015            200.71  
  33416       9 AFLAC                           04/24/2015          1,713.89  
  33417     103 BEACON CREDIT UNION             04/24/2015            385.00  
  33418 9999997 CARR, DASHANNA LACHEL           04/24/2015            104.20  
  33419     574 CHRISTOPHER MICALE, TRUSTEE     04/24/2015            125.00  
  33420     308 ENNIS-FLINT                     04/24/2015          1,674.93  
  33421 9999998 FARMER, TWYLA                   04/24/2015            150.00  
  33422 9999997 GILBERT, IRVIN JUNIOR           04/24/2015             34.60  
  33423     622 HEYWARD SERVICES INC            04/24/2015          4,853.68  
  33424      57 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457 #304  04/24/2015            820.00  
  33425     644 INSTITUTE FOR ADVANCED LEARNIN  04/24/2015          3,729.75  
  33426     566 INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP IN  04/24/2015            183.88  
  33427     218 MINNESOTA LIFE                  04/24/2015            122.86  
  33428     485 NEWMAN TRAFFIC SIGNS INC        04/24/2015            136.70  
  33429     423 NTELOS                          04/24/2015            879.61  
  33430     588 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL   04/24/2015             50.00  
  33431     447 PSYCHOLOGICAL HEALTH ROANOKE P  04/24/2015            370.00  
  33432     450 REGION 2000                     04/24/2015            210.00  
  33433      76 RYDIN DECAL                     04/24/2015            338.18  
  33434     228 SYDNOR HYDRO INC                04/24/2015         46,094.25  
  33435      96 UNIVAR USA INC                  04/24/2015          3,220.00  
  33436     587 US POSTAL SERVICE (POSTAGE BY   04/24/2015            500.00  
  33437     542 WILLOUGHBY & ASSOCIATES INC     04/24/2015            280.00  
       NO. OF CHECKS:   107                  TOTAL CHECKS         269,687.34 













































Town of Altavista

Grand Total of all Investments and Deposits 16,854,580.21$   

Balance as of April 30, 2015 Reserve Policy

Non-Specific

Green Hill Cemetery 557,750.42

General Fund Reserves

Capital Improvement Program Reserves 3,120,506.50

Altavista EDA Funding 299,594.61 *
VDOT TEA 21 Enhancement Match 309,000.00

608,594.61

Enterprise Fund Reserves

Capital Improvement Program Reserves 187,563.03
PCB Remediation 612,468.83

Community Improvement Reserve 0.00

Police Federal 2,908.32

Police State 15,238.74

Public Funds Money Market Accounts 10,586,949.17  Includes Funds $2,481,740.75 for Proj 1A - Bedford Waterline

Operating Checking Account (Reconciled Balance) 1,162,600.59

DESIGNATED FUNDS 2,959,561.51

13,895,018.70 General Enterprise Total

Reserve Policy Funds (This figure changes annually w/audit) -6,313,403.00 Policy $ 4,982,908 1,330,495 6,313,403
UNDESIGNATED FUNDS 7,581,615.70

NOTES: Earmarked CIP Reserve / Trash Truck - FY 2015 -184,000.00

Earmarked for Final Downtown Map-21 Project -77,600.00

ED rem balance of $35,000(website and marketing) -6,240.00

FY 2014 Highway Carryover of Funds -256,918.72

Earmarked for AOT No Interest Loan Program -40,000.00

"Pop-Up" Altavista Funding -10,000.00

Accrued Liability -197,801.84

FY14 Projected Carryover Needs -476,000.00

Funding from VDOT and LAP from Downtown Projects 150,000.00

Transit Funding -4,209.00

Funds for Project 1A - Bedford Waterline Imrpovement -2,481,740.75

Transfer of excess funds from Operating Acct. to MM -1,500,000.00

UNDESIGNATED RESERVE FUND BALANCE 2,497,105.39



 
 
 

 
ALTAVISTA TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda Item Summary - Staff Report 
 
 
Date:  May 7, 2015 
 
To:  Mayor Mattox and Council members 
 
FROM: Waverly Coggsdale, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: FY2016 Budget and FY2016-2020 Capital Improvement Program – Public Hearing 
 

 

 
Recommendation 
Conduct a Public Hearing in regard to the advertised FY2016 Budget and the FY2016-2020 Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP). 
 
Background and discussion 
 
Tonight will be an opportunity for the public to express their thoughts on the proposed FY2016 Budget 
and the FY2016-2020 Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  Following tonight’s public hearing, Town 
Council will have an opportunity to consider the comments before considering final adoption of the 
budget.  Should Council have items that they need to discuss further, they can be added to the May 
Town Council Work Session, scheduled for May 26th at 5:00 p.m.   Staff will be seeking adoption of the 
FY2016 Budget and the FY2016-2020 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) at the regular Town Council 
meeting in June. 
 
Based on actions taken by Town Council the total figure of the advertised budget has been reduced by 
$100,000.  This relates to the decision to proceed in FY2015 with water tank maintenance services with 
monies that are in the FY2015 Budget and in the Town Reserves previously earmarked for this 
purpose.  The advertised budget had been based on $100,000 being brought in from Reserves for the 
purpose, but the funds will now be utilized in FY2015. 
 
 The General Fund Revenue is estimated at:    $4,391,370 
 The Enterprise Fund Revenue is estimated at:   $2,954,900 
 The Highway Maintenance Fund Revenue is estimated at:  $   619,000 
 The Cemetery Fund Revenue is estimated at:   $     28,000 
 
The Proposed Operating Expenditures, for all funds, are $7,993,270 with $471,100 being transferred to 
the General Fund Reserves; and $147,260 being transferred to the Enterprise Fund Reserves. 
 
There is not proposed tax increase to any of the Town’s tax rates. 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item:  7a 



Town Council Agenda Form – PUBLIC HEARINGS – FY2016 Budget and CIP -  Page 2 
 
 
 
 
The PPTRA relief is estimated to be 65%. 
 
There is a proposed 5% increase to Utility Rates (Water & Sewer) included in the proposed FY2016 
Budget.  
 
The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for FY2016-2020 totals $5,044,400; the FY2016 Capital 
Improvement Program items/projects represent $1,172,700 of the total and is included in the FY2016 
Budget. 
 
Following the Public Hearing, Council may direct staff to make changes to the Budget and/or CIP or 
refer discussion to the May Town Council Work Session, if warranted. 
 
NO MOTIONS WILL BE NEEDED AT THIS TIME IN REGARD TO ADOPTION OF THE BUDGET 
AND/OR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP).  OFFICIAL ADOPTION IS SCHEDULED FOR 
COUNCIL’S REGULAR MEETING ON TUESDAY, JUNE 9, 2015. 
 
 
Attachments 

• Memo from Finance Director regarding 
Budget Revisions  

• FY2016 Proposed Budget Overview 
• Budget Public Hearing Ad 
• Proposed Tax Rate and Propose Utility Rate 

Increase Ad 

• PPTRA Resolution 
• Proposed Utility Rate Changes 
• Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Ad 

 

 







































 
 
 

ALTAVISTA TOWN COUNCIL 
Agenda Item Summary - Staff Report 

 
 
Date:  May 7, 2015 
 
To:  Mayor Mattox and Council members 
 
FROM: Waverly Coggsdale, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: DRO/Section 86-424-1 Ordinance Amendment 
 

 

 
Background and discussion 
 
At Council’s April 14, 2015 meeting, the Planning Commission’s recommendation in regard to adoption 
of the changes proposed to Section 86-242-1 were presented to Council.  These items relate to text 
ordinance amendments for the Downtown Revitalization Overlay (DRO) District, as well as ancillary 
design guidelines.  Following a brief discussion, the item was tabled until the May 12, 2015 Council 
meeting.  A copy of the updated Design Guidelines was provided to Council. 
 
Accordingly, this item has been placed on Council’s agenda for consideration this evening.  The text 
amendment would add amend Section 86-424-1 Architectural treatment; Voluntary Design Assistance 
to the Downtown Revitalization Overlay (DRO) District section of the Town’s Zoning Ordinance: 
 
 
 
 

 
 
The ancillary document guidelines are referenced and all reference to a design review board has been 
removed; the use of the guidelines is on a voluntary basis. 
 
Recommendation 
Planning Commission recommends approval of the text amendment and the adoption of the Design 
Guidelines. 
 
Action(s) requested or suggested motion:  
 
I move that Section 86-424-1 of the Town’s Zoning Ordinance be amended as recommended by the 
Altavista Planning Commission. 
 
Attachments: Town Council agenda item from April meeting/Planning Commission recommendation 

 
Agenda Item: 8a 

The Town of Altavista Downtown Revitalization Overlay District Design Guidelines is 
available to assist in the maintenance, restoration, and rehabilitation of exterior 
architectural features.  While not required, voluntary application of the methods and 
principles put forth in that document are recommended and encouraged. 
 









 
 
 

ALTAVISTA TOWN COUNCIL 
Agenda Item Summary - Staff Report 

 
 
Date:  May 7, 2015 
 
To:  Mayor Mattox and Council members 
 
FROM: Waverly Coggsdale, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: DHCD’s Virginia Telecommunication Planning Initiative  
 

 

 
Background and discussion 
 
Recently, VML emailed a request from the Virginia Department of Housing and Community 
Development (DHCD) regarding community’s interest in submitting a Letter of Interest” for the Virginia 
Telecommunications Planning Initiative (VATPI).  The letter states that the “primary objective of the 
VATPI is to ensure community sustainability and competiveness in the global marketplace via 
comprehensive planning for broadband deployment.” 
 
Staff has reached out to Region 2000 to be a source of professional guidance and support in regard to 
preparation of the Letter of Interest.  Staff is also conducting surveys and identifying stakeholders who 
may have an interest in the development of a successful community broadband network. 
 
Dennis Jarvis, Economic Development Director, will be on hand to addresses questions regarding this 
issue. 
 
 
Recommendation 
Council endorse staff proceeding with submittal of a Letter of Interest” on the Town’s behalf for the 
Virginia Telecommunication Planning Initiative (VATPI). 
 
 
 
Action(s) requested or suggested motion:  
 
Per discussion. 
 
 
 
Attachments: Staff Memo; and DHCD Letter to VML 

 
Agenda Item: 8b 



 
 

VHCD Virginia Telecommunications Planning Initiative   

May 12, 2015  

  

The Office of Economic Development is developing a planning grant for submission to the 
Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) to assist Altavista in the 
development of a strategic plan for broadband development. The VATPI grant program will allow 
Altavista to work with existing providers and other officials in developing a strategic plan for a 
community based broadband network.  

If awarded a grant the community will be able to develop: 

• An assessment of the current broadband availability and usage in Altavista  
• Address demand aggregation and potential future use 
• Address the relationship with regional planning and telecommunication networks  
• Address community development applications  
• And the design of a community broadband system  

We are developing a Letter of Intent (LOI) and will submit the LOI by Friday May 22, 2015. Eight 
communities from the state will be selected to receive up to $75,000.00. Our LOI will focus on the 
following areas: 

• Statement of need: What is the current state of the availability of broadband in the 
community  

• Outline any prior experience with planning or developing a strategic plan for 
telecommunications and or broadband development  

• Collaboration and community support: On Wednesday May 13, 2015 we will conduct a 
public meeting to address the needs of our citizens. We also developed a web based 
survey asking respondents to address twenty questions in regard to their internet 
service.  

• Identify stakeholders: We will develop a committee of interested officials and citizens 
that will work on the planning committee if we are awarded the planning grant.  

Important dates: 

• May 22, 2015 Submission of the LOI  
• June 1, 2015 DHCD notifies communities that are being selected to participate in the grant 

process  
• Late June/July DHCD hosts a training session for the grant process  
• July 17, 2015 Deadline for submission for full applications 
• August 2015 Announcement of grant winners   













 
 
 

ALTAVISTA TOWN COUNCIL 
Agenda Item Summary - Staff Report 

 
 
Date:  May 7, 2015 
 
To:  Mayor Mattox and Council members 
 
FROM: Waverly Coggsdale, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Reimbursement Resolution – Utility Projects 
 

 

 
Background and discussion 
 
Previously Council approved staff to move forward with design work related to two utility related 
construction projects:  Project 1B “Main Street Waterline Replacement” and the Melinda Tank High 
Pressure Zone Project.    The Main Street Waterline Project is ready to be advertised for receipt of bids, 
the attached schedule lays out the schedule for this project.   
 
While the source of funding for these two projects has not be decided, it would be advantageous for 
Council to adopt the attached “Reimbursement Resolution”.  This will provide flexibility to pay for 
expenses now but have the ability to reimburse the Town later should we borrow the funds for one or 
both of the projects, the current figure in the resolution is $2.5 million.   Any expenses that were 
incurred within sixty (60) days before the adoption of the resolution are eligible for reimbursement. 
 
At this time projected expenses eligible would be: 
 

• Project 1B – “Main Street Waterline”  $1,912,000 
• Melinda Tank High Pressure Zone Project $   633,000 

 
Total:       $2,545,000 

 
Council may desire to raise the Reimbursement Resolution amount from $2.5 million to allow for full 
reimbursement of the projected cost of both projects. 
 
 
Recommendation 
Adopt the attached “Resolution of Official Intent To Reimburse Expenditures With Proceeds Of a 
“Borrowing”. 
 
Provide Staff with any direction in regard to the funding source for the projects. 
 

 
Agenda Item: 8c 



 
 
Action(s) requested or suggested motion:  
 
I move that the attached “Resolution of Official Intent To Reimburse Expenditures with Proceeds Of A 
Borrowing” be adopted. 
 
Attachments: Reimbursement Resolution; and Projects Information 



RESOLUTION OF OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE 
EXPENDITURES WITH PROCEEDS OF A BORROWING 

 
 

WHEREAS,  the  Town   of  Altavista,   Virginia   (the  "Borrower"),  intends   to  acquire, construct  and 
equip improvements to its water systems,  including but not limited  to, replacement of certain  water lines and  
replacement  of pumps,  meters and filters  (collectively, the "Project"); and 

 
WHEREAS, plans for  the Project  have advanced  and the Borrower  expects  to advance its own  funds  to 

pay expenditures related  to the Project  (the "Expenditures") prior to incurring indebtedness and to receive  
reimbursement  for such  Expenditures from  proceeds  of tax-exempt bonds or taxable debt, or both; 

 
BE  IT  RESOLVED  BY  THE  TOWN  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF ALTAVISTA, VIRGINIA: 

 
I.     The Borrower  intends  to utilize  the proceeds  of tax-exempt bonds (the "Bonds") or to incur other 

debt, in an amount  not currently expected  to exceed $2.5 million to pay the costs of the Project. 
 

2.         The  Borrower  intends  that  the  proceeds  of  the Bonds  be used  to reimburse  the Borrower  for 
Expenditures with respect  to the Project  made on or after the date that is no more than 60 days prior  to the date of 
this Resolution.    The Borrower r e a s on a b l y  expect s  on the date hereof that it will reimburse the Expenditures with 
the proceeds of the Bonds or other debt. 

 
3.         Each  Expenditure was or  will  be,  unless  otherwise  approved  by  bond  counsel, either  (a) of a 

type  properly  chargeable to a capital  account  under  general  federal  income  tax principles (determined  in each case 
as of the date of the Expenditure), (b) a cost of issuance  with respect   to  the  Bonds,  (c)  a  nonrecurring  item  that  
is  not  customarily  payable  from  current revenues,  or (d) a grant  to a party  that is not related  to or an agent of 
the Borrower  so long as such  grant  does  not  impose  any  obligation   or  condition   (directly  or  indirectly)   to  
repay  any amount  to or for the benefit of the Borrower. 

 
4.         The  Borrower  intends  to  make  a  reimbursement allocation,   which  is  a  written allocation   by  the  

Borrower   that  evidences   the  Borrower's  use  of  proceeds  of  the  Bonds  to reimburse  an  Expenditure, no  later  
than  18  months  after  the  later  of  the  date  on  which  the Expenditure  is paid or the Project  is placed  in service  
or abandoned,  but in no event  more than three  years  after  the  date  on  which  the  Expenditure   is paid.    The  
Borrower   recognizes  that exceptions   are  available   for  certain  "preliminary expenditures," costs  of  issuance,  
certain  de minimis amounts, expenditures by "small  issuers" (based on the year of issuance and not the year of 
expenditure) and expenditures for construction of at least five years. 

 
5.         The  Borrower  intends  that the adoption  of this  resolution  confirms  the "official intent"  within  

the  meaning  of  Treasury  Regulations  Section   1.150-2  promulgated   under  the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended. 

 
6.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.  

Adopted May 12, 2015 

 



ID Task Name Start Finish

1 Town of Altavista Phase 1B, Main Street 
Water Line Improvements

Sun 5/17/15 Wed 3/2/16

2 Advertise Sun 5/17/15 Sun 5/17/15

3 Bid Period Mon 5/18/15 Wed 6/17/15

4 Pre Bid Conference Tue 6/2/15 Tue 6/2/15

5 Bid Opening Thu 6/18/15 Thu 6/18/15

6 Review Bid Documents Fri 6/19/15 Thu 6/25/15

7 Award Fri 6/26/15 Fri 6/26/15

8 Finalize Contract Mon 6/29/15 Fri 7/3/15

9 Notice to Proceed Mon 7/6/15 Mon 7/6/15

10 Construction Phase (240 days) Tue 7/7/15 Wed 3/2/16

11 Substantial Completion Mon 2/1/16 Mon 2/1/16

12 Final Completion Wed 3/2/16 Wed 3/2/16

5/17

6/2

6/18

6/26

7/6

2/1

3/2

Mar May Jul Sep Nov Jan Mar May
er 3rd Quarter 1st Quarter

2016

Town of Altavista, Virginia
Proposed Construction Schedule ‐ Phase 1B

Main Street Water Line Improvements

May 7, 2015 WW Associates, Inc.
PO Box 4119, Lynchburg, VA 24502   Phone:  434-316-6080

3040 Avemore Square Place, Charlottesville, VA 22911  Phone:  434-984-2700

Page 1  of 1

jwcoggsdale1
Highlight



Project: Main Street Water Line Project 1B
Location: Town of Altavista, VA

WWA Project No: 214066.03
Date: 7-May-15

Estimate By: JMF
Checked By: EJTP/HFW

Status: Final
Page: 1 of 1

Description: Construction Costs
Unit Total Unit Total Total

Material Material Labor Labor Unit Total
Units Quantity Cost Costs Cost Costs Costs Cost

LS $1 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 100,000$       

12" Pressure Class 350 D.I. Water Main Piping LF 6,700 $40 $268,000 $40 $268,000 $80 536,000$       
Fire Hydrant Assembly EA 7 $2,305 $16,135 $335 $2,345 $2,640 18,480$         
12" Gate Valve w/Valve Box EA 7 $1,550 $10,850 $210 $1,470 $1,760 12,320$         
Near Side Service Connection EA 20 $25 $500 $200 $4,000 $225 4,500$           
Far Side Service Connection EA 20 $100 $2,000 $400 $8,000 $500 10,000$         
Trench Excavation & Backfill (3' Wide/4' Deep) CY 3,000 0 $0 $8 $24,000 $8 24,000$         
Rock Excavation (Estimate 10% All Excavation is in Rock) CY 300 0 $0 $85 $25,500 $85 25,500$         
Coarse Aggregate Fill (to Replace Excavated Rock) CY 300 $32 $9,600 $8 $2,400 $40 12,000$         
Saw Cut Existing Pavement (each side of trench on Main St.) LF 13,400 $0 $0 $2 $26,800 $2 26,800$         
VDOT No. 21B aggregate backfill and base Tons 4,900 $10 $49,000 $10 $49,000 $20 98,000$         
VDOT BM-25.0 Asphalt Base (10"thick x 5'wide) Tons 1,850 $35 $64,750 $35 $64,750 $70 129,500$       

Gal 520 $1 $520 $1 $520 $2 1,040$           
VDOT SM-9.5A Surface Asphalt (1.5" thick x 5' wide) Tons 270 $35 $9,450 $35 $9,450 $70 18,900$         

8-inch Water Main 
8-inch Pressure Class 52 DIP LF 1,750 $30 $52,500 $30 $52,500 $60 105,000$       
Excavation  (3.0' wide x 4' deep) CY 778 $0 $0 $4 $3,111 $8 6,222$           
Rock Excavation (Estimate 10% All Excavation is in Rock) CY 78 0 $0 $85 $6,611 $85 6,611$           
Coarse Aggregate Fill (to Replace Excavated Rock) CY 78 $32 $2,489 $8 $622 $40 3,111$           
Pipe Bedding VDOT No. 21A (4-inches) Tons 90 $10 $900 $10 $900 $20 1,800$           
Backfill and compact soil material CY 770 $0 $0 $6 $4,620 $6 4,620$           
Service Connections (Near Side) EA 15 $25 $375 $200 $3,000 $225 3,375$           
Service Connections (Far Side) EA 15 $100 $1,500 $400 $6,000 $500 7,500$           
Fire Hydrant Assembly EA 4 $2,305 $9,220 $335 $1,340 $2,640 10,560$         

EA 6 $855 $5,130 $210 $1,260 $1,065 6,390$           
Air Release Valve Assembly EA 1 $3,000 $3,000 $1,000 $1,000 $4,000 4,000$           
Saw Cut Existing Pavement (each side of trench) LF 3,500 $0 $0 $2 $7,000 $2 7,000$           
VDOT No. 21B aggregate backfill and base Tons 1,300 $10 $13,000 $10 $13,000 $20 26,000$         
VDOT BM-25.0 Asphalt Base (10"thick x 5'wide) Tons 480 $35 $16,800 $35 $16,800 $70 33,600$         

Tack Coat (.10 Gal/SY)

Item
Mobilization

8-inch Gate Valve w/ Valve Box 

jwcoggsdale1
Highlight



Unit Total Unit Total Total
Material Material Labor Labor Unit Total

Units Quantity Cost Costs Cost Costs Costs CostItem
Gal 130 $1 $130 $1 $130 $2 260$              

VDOT SM-9.5A Surface Asphalt (1.5" thick x 5' wide) Tons 70 $35 $2,450 $35 $2,450 $70 4,900$           

Traffic Control LS 1 $0 $0 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 20,000$         
Seeding, E&S Control LS 2 $500 $1,000 $2,000 $4,000 $2,500 5,000$           

$539,299 $730,579 1,269,878$    
26,814$         

SUBTOTAL 1,296,692$    
CONSTRUCTION MARKUP @ 30% 389,008$       

84,285$         
CONSTRUCTION ADMIN & INSPECTIONS 141,500$       

TOTAL AFTER CONSTRUCTION MARKUP 1,912,000$   

Subtotals:
5.3% Sales Tax on Materials

CONTINGENCY OF 5%

Tack Coat (.10 Gal/SY)





  
 
 
Town Manager’s Report – For Month of April 2015 
 
 
Bedford Avenue Waterline Project (Project 1A) 
 

• Waterline installation is mostly complete. 
• Sidewalks are being installed   
• Monthly Construction Meeting Notes are attached. 
• Substantial Completion Date: July 24, 2015    Final Completion Date:  August 25, 2015       

 
  
 
WWTP EOP – PCB Remediation 
 

• Institute of Advanced Learning & Research Workshop to be held June 17th & 18th (Danville and 
Altavista).  Flyer attached. 

• Working  with Dr. Scott Lowman (IALR) regarding implementation of his research. 
• No response has been received from VA DEQ. 
• Numerous phone calls/emails have gone unanswered from Scott Rice, EPA Region III. 
• Abatement of turtles from EOP continues. 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 

P.O. Box 4119  Lynchburg, VA 24502 
Telephone (434) 316-6080  Fax (434) 316-6081 

 
 

Lynchburg  Charlottesville  

Bedford Avenue 
Water Line Phase 1A 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 
WWA Project No. 213084.00 

 
Payment Meeting No. 6 
May 5, 2015 – 9:30 am 

 

MINUTES 

Attendees: Owner:  Waverly Coggsdale, David Garrett, Phillip Jacobs 
VDOT:  Ken Carlton, Kimberly McMahan, Tiffany Tweedy, Danny Cruff 
WWA:  Turner Perrow, P.E 
DLB, Inc.:  Dicky Morgan, Clyde Roberts, Mike Igo 

 
 
1. Field Work: Finishing up Bedford Avenue on May 5, 2015 or May 6, 2015. Finish 

Myrtle, Hillcrest this week. Sidewalk crews on site. Pavers scheduled to arrive on 
Thursday. The Main Street sidewalk is to be complete by May 25th. 

 
2. Construction Inspector’s Report: 

a. WWA requested a report from the inspector regarding rain days. 
b. Contractor to call VA Traffic at the beginning and end of every day. 
c. Compaction testing will be performed on previously installed work to ensure 

compliance with the specifications. 
d. Clean up material along the ROW, consolidate to laydown areas.  

COMPLETE 
e. Contractor to provide copies of bacteria testing results. 
f. Inspector has been handing out fliers regarding construction activity. 

 
3. VDOT Comments: 

a. Contractor to perform lane closures on Main Street.  The proposed detour is 
not authorized by VDOT. 

b. Signalized intersections shall be converted to flashing prior to allowing 
Contractors forces to flag traffic.  Contact VDOT to schedule flashing the 
signals. Contractor has coordinated with VDOT. 

c. VDOT will allow Saturday work if requested by the Contractor and 
authorized by the Owner. 

d. VDOT contacted by homeowner for a new VDOT entrance. WWA to issue 
Field Order for construction of CG-12 at 1201 Bedford Avenue and CG-9 at 
1109 Bedford Avenue. 



P.O. Box 4119  Lynchburg, VA 24502 
Telephone (434) 316-6080  Fax (434) 316-6081 

 
 

Lynchburg  Charlottesville 
Page 2 of 4 

e. WWA to verify how driveway aprons are to be replaced, either whole or part.  
UPDATE – Disturbed driveway entrances are to be replaced with CG-9 
entrances as detailed in the construction documents. 

f. VDOT needs the road patched. Contractor to perform hydrostatic testing, then 
schedule patching 4/17/2015. Contractor requested to pave Bedford crossing 
at Myrtle and test holes on Bedford Avenue. Pavers scheduled for May 7, 
2015. 

g. YMCA is sponsoring a 2 mile race. All pavement should be complete on 
Bedford Avenue by this time. 

h. VDOT requests that signs come down at the end of the day. 
i. UPDATE:  VDOT returned to the job site to verify compliance with the 

Virginia Work Area Protection Manual.  Determining that the Contractor was 
not in compliance, VDOT scheduled an emergency meeting at 8:30 am on 
May 6, 2015. 

 
4. Easements / Property access:   

a. Contractor directed to inform Engineer if an access issue is identified. 
 
5. RFIs: None.  

 
6. Changes: 

a. Change Proposal Request: New 16x16 tee, 8” valve, 8x16 reducer, and blind 
flange. Use all mechanical joints. 

i. Work Change Directive #2 discussed and will be officially issued 
shortly.  

ii. Needs to be signed by Contractor. 
b. Work Change Directive #3: 

i.  Revision #1 to be issued 
ii. Needs to include new meters on Myrtle. 

c. Pricing is requested from DLB to connect the 2” high pressure water line 
discovered on Commonwealth to the new 8” water line.  In addition, the 8” 
water line must be converted to high pressure at the intersection of Bedford 
Ave and Myrtle Ln to maintain the existing pressure conditions.  WWA to send 
sketch detailing these items to DLB. 

 
7. Shop Drawings: None. 

 
8. Permits: None.   

a. VMRC – River crossing adjustment 
 
9. Schedule: 

a. Need to have Main Street on paving schedule. Pavers anticipated May 7, 
2015. 

b. Suggested paving/patching sequence 
i. Compaction testing and schedule asphalt. Patching begins. 



P.O. Box 4119  Lynchburg, VA 24502 
Telephone (434) 316-6080  Fax (434) 316-6081 

 
 

Lynchburg  Charlottesville 
Page 3 of 4 

ii. Test line and construct driveway aprons. 
c. Park to be complete by May 25th. 

 
10. Upcoming Information needed: None.    
 
11. Discussion / Comments / Questions: 

a. Contractor reported that the gas company has been slow in responding to 
utility location tickets.  Gas Company crews are performing to the best of their 
abilities to locate lines. 

b. Town warned Contractor to proceed very carefully while working in the lot 
and areas surrounding the Bedford Avenue water tank as there are many 
underground utilities in the area.  The Town offered to assist in determining 
the status of any lines found. 

c. Need to repair basketball court. DLB to be responsible for restoration. Town 
will pay for repair/resurface. 

d. English Park 
i. Remove all stored equipment and materials from parking lot. 

COMPLETE.  
ii. Repair parking lot area with Surface treatment (tar & gravel). 

Expected to be complete May 7, 2015. 
iii. Repair pavement with blacktop on Broad Street. Expected to be 

complete May 7, 2015 
iv. Repair basketball court with blacktop. Expected to be complete 

May 7, 2015. 
v. Reinstall the basketball goal post. To be completed after paving. 

vi. Reinstall fence around the basketball court. To be completed after 
paving. 

vii.  Repair the parking lot at the Booker Building.    
e.  Main Street 

i. Clean up the piles of rubble where the water line crosses. 
ii. Repair or replace Town Street Sign on Main Street near Broad St. 

at Gazebo. 
iii. Replace brick Cross walk at Main & Broad Street. 
iv. Install new sidewalk on Main Street. 
v. Install new driveway entrances on Main Street. 

vi. Replace broken curbing along Main Street. 
f. Bedford Avenue 

i. Install new sidewalks  
ii. All open cut areas across the Street shall be repaved with blacktop 

within 24 hours of installing water line pipes. To be completed 
May 7, 2015. 

iii. Replace broken curbing along Bedford Avenue. 
iv. Sweep Street to remove all loose gravels, dirt, blacktop, and 

concrete that is within the R/W and in private property where 
construction took place. 



P.O. Box 4119  Lynchburg, VA 24502 
Telephone (434) 316-6080  Fax (434) 316-6081 

 
 

Lynchburg  Charlottesville 
Page 4 of 4 

g. Myrtle Lane 
i. Re-grade shoulders to slope away from pavement for drainage, 

and seed. 
h. Owner and Contractor will meet with McDonald’s. 

 
12. Pay Request: No. 6:  Contractor distributed the pay request for review. WWA to wait 

for an updated application.  UPDATE: Corrected application received May 7, 2015. 
 
13. Next Payment Meeting: May 26, 2015 at 9:30 a.m.   



Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration

Early Start Early Finish Late Start Late Finish Actual Start Actual 
Finish

Activity %
Complete

Total
Float

Bedford Avenue Water Line Phase 1Bedford Avenue Water Line Phase 1 155 30-Apr-15 23-Jul-15 01-Dec-14 23-Jul-15 27-Oct-14 0

StartStart 0 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 27-Oct-14 27-Oct-14

A1000 Notice to proceed 0 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 27-Oct-14 100%

MobilizationMobilization 189 30-Apr-15 23-Jul-15 30-Apr-15 23-Jul-15 10-Nov-14 0

A1010 Move In 5 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 10-Nov-14 01-Dec-14 100%

A1020 Move Out 1 23-Jul-15 23-Jul-15 23-Jul-15 23-Jul-15 0% 0

EngineeringEngineering 145 30-Apr-15 28-May-15 30-Apr-15 30-Jun-15 03-Nov-14 23

A1030 Stakeout 16" sta 10+00 to 87+18 Bedford Ave 5 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 03-Nov-14 14-Nov-14 100%

A1040 Stakeout 12" sta 100+14 to 142+02 Bedford Ave 4 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 31-Dec-14 15-Jan-15 100%

A1050 Stakeout 8" sta 150+00 to 168+00 Broad Street 2 22-May-15 26-May-15 08-Jun-15 09-Jun-15 0% 10

A1060 Stakeout 8" 170+00 to 179+87 Hillcrest St 2 20-May-15 21-May-15 04-Jun-15 05-Jun-15 0% 10

A1070 Stakeout 8" 185+00 to 190+47 Westwood 2 18-May-15 19-May-15 27-May-15 28-May-15 0% 6

A1080 Stakeout 8" 225+00 to 227+72 10th st 1 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 08-May-15 08-May-15 27-Jan-15 02-Feb-15 100%

A1090 Stakeout 8": 200+00 to 211+26 Broad St 4 30-Apr-15 05-May-15 08-May-15 13-May-15 0% 6

A1100 Stakeout 8" 215+00 to 220+00 10th st 1 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 08-May-15 08-May-15 26-Jan-15 28-Jan-15 100%

A1110 Stakeout 8" 230+00 to 237+17 Grace and 9th st 2 06-May-15 07-May-15 14-May-15 15-May-15 0% 6

A1120 Stakeout 8" 240+00 to 247+19 Campbell ave & 8th st 2 27-May-15 28-May-15 29-Jun-15 30-Jun-15 0% 23

A1130 Stakeout 8" 250+00 to 256+86 Myrtle lane & Commonwealth drive 2 08-May-15 11-May-15 18-May-15 19-May-15 0% 6

A1140 Stakeout 8" 270+00 to 290+25 Myrtle Lane 4 12-May-15 15-May-15 20-May-15 26-May-15 0% 6

WaterlineWaterline 79 30-Apr-15 02-Jul-15 30-Apr-15 14-Jul-15 01-Dec-14 7

A1150 Install 16" 10+00 to 40+00 Bedford Ave 45 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 14-Jul-15 14-Jul-15 01-Dec-14 27-Feb-15 100%

A1155 Install 12" 50+00 to 82+00 Bedford Ave 35 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 16-Jan-15 16-Feb-15 100%

A1160 Install 12" 82+00 to 142+02 Bedford Ave 35 30-Apr-15 18-Jun-15 30-Apr-15 18-Jun-15 02-Mar-15 0% 0

A1170 Install 8" 150+00 to 168+00 Broad Street 15 02-Jun-15 22-Jun-15 10-Jun-15 30-Jun-15 10-Mar-15 0% 6

A1180 Install 8" 170+00 to 179+87 Hillcrest str. 9 01-Jun-15 01-Jun-15 10-Jun-15 10-Jun-15 22-Apr-15 29-Apr-15 100%

A1190 Install 8" 185+00 to 190+47 Westwood 8 20-May-15 01-Jun-15 29-May-15 09-Jun-15 20-Apr-15 0% 6

A1200 Install 8" 225+00 to 227+72 10th st 4 30-Apr-15 05-May-15 26-May-15 29-May-15 16-Feb-15 0% 17

A1210 Install 8" 200+00 to 211+26 Broad st 10 06-May-15 19-May-15 01-Jun-15 12-Jun-15 06-Mar-15 0% 17

A1220 Install 8" 215+00 to 220+00 10th st 8 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 26-May-15 26-May-15 03-Feb-15 16-Feb-15 100%

A1230 Install 8" 230+00 to 237+17 Grace & 9th st 9 19-May-15 19-May-15 15-Jun-15 15-Jun-15 18-Mar-15 27-Mar-15 100%

A1240 Install 8" 240+00 to 247+19 Campbell ave & 8th st 8 23-Jun-15 02-Jul-15 01-Jul-15 13-Jul-15 0% 6

A1250 Install 8" 250+00 to 256+86 Myrtle lane & Commonwealth Dr. 7 19-May-15 19-May-15 15-Jun-15 15-Jun-15 30-Mar-15 08-Apr-15 100%

A1260 Install 8" 270+00 to 290+25 Myrtle lane 20 20-May-15 17-Jun-15 15-Jun-15 13-Jul-15 01-Apr-15 0% 17

Concrete FlatworkConcrete Flatwork 56 30-Apr-15 20-Jul-15 30-Apr-15 20-Jul-15 0

A1270 Flatwork 10+00 to 87+18 Bedford Ave 12 30-Apr-15 15-May-15 30-Apr-15 15-May-15 0% 0

A1280 Flatwork 100+14 to 142+02 Bedford ave 13 18-May-15 04-Jun-15 18-May-15 04-Jun-15 0% 0

A1290 Flatwork 150+00 to 168+00 Broad St 7 06-Jul-15 14-Jul-15 06-Jul-15 14-Jul-15 0% 0

A1300 Flatwork 170+00 to 179+87 Hillcrest st 3 30-Jun-15 02-Jul-15 30-Jun-15 02-Jul-15 0% 0

A1310 Flatwork 185+00 to 190+47 Westwood 2 26-Jun-15 29-Jun-15 26-Jun-15 29-Jun-15 0% 0

A1320 Flatwork 225+00 to 227_72 10th st 2 09-Jun-15 10-Jun-15 09-Jun-15 10-Jun-15 0% 0

A1330 Flatwork 200+00 to 211+26 Broad St 3 11-Jun-15 15-Jun-15 11-Jun-15 15-Jun-15 0% 0

A1340 Flatwork 215+00 to 220+00 10th st 2 05-Jun-15 08-Jun-15 05-Jun-15 08-Jun-15 0% 0

A1350 Flatwork 230+00 to 237+17 Grace and 9th st 3 16-Jun-15 18-Jun-15 16-Jun-15 18-Jun-15 0% 0

A1360 Flatwork 240+00 to 247+19 Campbell ave & 8th st 4 15-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 15-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 0% 0

A1370 Flatwork 250+00 to 256+86 Myrtle lane & commonwealth dr 2 19-Jun-15 22-Jun-15 19-Jun-15 22-Jun-15 0% 0

A1380 Flatwork 270+00 to 290+25 Myrtle lane 3 23-Jun-15 25-Jun-15 23-Jun-15 25-Jun-15 0% 0

BoreBore 98 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 21-Jul-15 21-Jul-15 17-Nov-14 06-Feb-15

A1390 Directional drill at river 90 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 21-Jul-15 21-Jul-15 17-Nov-14 30-Jan-15 100%

A1400 Bore uner RR 60 30-Apr-15 30-Apr-15 21-Jul-15 21-Jul-15 31-Dec-14 06-Feb-15 100%

PavingPaving 73 30-Apr-15 09-Jul-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 21-Apr-15 7

A1410 Pave Parking lot at park 5 30-Apr-15 06-May-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 0% 53

A1420 pave Pitsylvania Ave 5 30-Apr-15 06-May-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 0% 53

A1430 Pave Bedford Ave 5 30-Apr-15 06-May-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 21-Apr-15 0% 53

A1440 Pave Broad st 5 22-Jun-15 29-Jun-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 0% 15

A1450 Pave Hillcrest Dr 5 01-Jun-15 08-Jun-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 0% 30

A1460 Pave Westwood 5 01-Jun-15 08-Jun-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 0% 30

A1470 Pave 10th st 5 06-May-15 12-May-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 0% 49

A1480 Pave Grace St. 5 20-May-15 26-May-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 0% 39

A1490 Pave 9th st 5 20-May-15 26-May-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 0% 39

A1500 Pave Campbell ave 5 03-Jul-15 09-Jul-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 0% 7

A1510 Pave 8th st 5 03-Jul-15 09-Jul-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 0% 7

A1520 Pave Myrtle dr 5 18-Jun-15 24-Jun-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 0% 18

A1530 Pave Commonwealt Dr 5 20-May-15 26-May-15 14-Jul-15 20-Jul-15 0% 39

:MOT:MOT 165 30-Apr-15 18-Jun-15 01-Dec-14 18-Jun-15 01-Dec-14 0

A1540 Install traffic control Daily 165 30-Apr-15 18-Jun-15 01-Dec-14 18-Jun-15 01-Dec-14 78.79% 0

FinishFinish 3 21-Jul-15 23-Jul-15 21-Jul-15 23-Jul-15 0

A1550 Clean up 2 21-Jul-15 22-Jul-15 21-Jul-15 22-Jul-15 0% 0

A1560 Close out 0 23-Jul-15 23-Jul-15 0% 0

Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

2014 2015 2016

23-Jul-15, Bedford Avenue Water Line Phase 1

27-Oct-14 A, Star t

Notice to proceed

23-Jul-15, Mobilization

Move In

Move Out

28-May-15, Engineering

Stakeout 16" sta 10+00 to 87+18 Bedford Ave

Stakeout 12" sta 100+14 to 142+02 Bedford Ave

Stakeout 8" sta 150+00 to 168+00 Broad Street

Stakeout 8" 170+00 to 179+87 Hillcrest St

Stakeout 8" 185+00 to 190+47 Westwood

Stakeout 8" 225+00 to 227+72 10th st

Stakeout 8": 200+00 to 211+26 Broad St

Stakeout 8" 215+00 to 220+00 10th st

Stakeout 8" 230+00 to 237+17 Grace and 9th st

Stakeout 8" 240+00 to 247+19 Campbell ave & 8th st

Stakeout 8" 250+00 to 256+86 Myrtle lane & Commonwealth drive

Stakeout 8" 270+00 to 290+25 Myrtle Lane

02-Jul-15, Waterline

Install 16" 10+00 to 40+00 Bedford Ave

Install 12" 50+00 to 82+00 Bedford Ave

Install 12" 82+00 to 142+02 Bedford Ave

Install 8" 150+00 to 168+00 Broad Street

Install 8" 170+00 to 179+87 Hillcrest str.

Install 8" 185+00 to 190+47 Westwood

Install 8" 225+00 to 227+72 10th st

Install 8" 200+00 to 211+26 Broad st

Install 8" 215+00 to 220+00 10th st

Install 8" 230+00 to 237+17 Grace & 9th st

Install 8" 240+00 to 247+19 Campbell ave & 8th st

Install 8" 250+00 to 256+86 Myrtle lane & Commonwealth Dr.

Install 8" 270+00 to 290+25 Myrtle lane

20-Jul-15, Concrete Flatwork

Flatwork 10+00 to 87+18 Bedford Ave

Flatwork 100+14 to 142+02 Bedford ave

Flatwork 150+00 to 168+00 Broad St

Flatwork 170+00 to 179+87 Hillcrest st

Flatwork 185+00 to 190+47 Westwood

Flatwork 225+00 to 227_72 10th st

Flatwork 200+00 to 211+26 Broad St

Flatwork 215+00 to 220+00 10th st

Flatwork 230+00 to 237+17 Grace and 9th st

Flatwork 240+00 to 247+19 Campbell ave & 8th st

Flatwork 250+00 to 256+86 Myrtle lane & commonwealth dr

Flatwork 270+00 to 290+25 Myrtle lane

06-Feb-15 A, Bore

Directional drill at river

Bore uner RR

09-Jul-15, Paving

Pave Parking lot at park

pave Pitsylvania Ave

Pave Bedford Ave

Pave Broad st

Pave Hillcrest Dr

Pave Westwood

Pave 10th st

Pave Grace St.

Pave 9th st

Pave Campbell ave

Pave 8th st

Pave Myrtle dr

Pave Commonwealt Dr

18-Jun-15, :MOT

Install traffic control Daily

23-Jul-15, Finish

Clean up

Close out

Bedford Avenue Water Line Phase 1 Typical Layout_1 04-May-15 16:09

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Milestone

Summary Page 1 of 1 TASK filter: All Activities

© Oracle Corporation



To(Owner) Town of Altivista 

Project: Bedford Avenue Water Line Ph lA 

Owner's Contract No.: 
---- --~-

App6cation For Payment 
Change Order Summary 

Approved change Orders 

-----

Number Additions 

TOTALS $ 

NET CHANGE BY 

CHANGE ORDERS $ 
-- ----

-

Contractor's Application for Payment No. I 6 
' 

lAPP !CatiOn Application Date: I Period: 3/29/15 to 4/30/15 5/4/2015 
From (Contractor) DLB,Inc Via (Engineer) WW Associates 

I 
Contract: 

I 
Contractors Project No.: Engineer's Project No.: 213084.03 
-----

---- -----~ ~ 

1. ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE ................................................................ $ 3796323.17 

Deductions 2. Net change by Change Orders ............................................................ .$ 

3. Current Contract Price (Line 1 t 2) ..................................................... $ 3796323.17 

4. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE 

(Column F on Progress Estimate) ......................................................... $ 2571316.66S 

5. RETAINAGE: 

a. X 5" Work Completed .................................. $ 128S65.83 

b. X 5" Stored Material... ..................... _ ........ .$ 0.00 

c. Total Retainage (Line Sa+ Line Sb) ................................ $ 128565.83 

6. AMOUNT ELIGIBLE TO DATE (Line 4- Line Sc) ................................... $ 2442750.83 

$ - 7. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS{Une61rom priorAppfiutlon) .......... $ 2096242.63 

8. AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION ..................................................... .$ 346508.20 

- 9. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAINAGE 
-

(Column G on Progress Estimate+ Line 5 above) ................................ $ $ 1,353,572.34 

Contractor's Certification Payment of: $----------~----~--~--~--~~~--~~---------The undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of its knowledge: (1) all previous progress! (Line 8 or other- attach explanation of the other amount) 
payments received from Owner on account of Work done under the Contract have been lis recommended by: 
applied on account to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations incurred in connection wit 
Work covered by prior Applications for Payment; (2) title of all work, materials and equipment 
incorporated in said Work or otherwise listed in or covered by this Application for Payment will 
pass to Owner at time of payment free and clear of all Liens, security interests and Payment of 
encumbrances (except such as are covered by a Bond acceptable to Owner indemnifying 
Owner against any such Liens, security interest or encumbrances); and (3) all Work coverd by 
this Application for Payment is in accordance with the Contract Documents and is not 
defective. 

is approved by: 

1---....--...,.---------------------........------.--T------I~Approved by: 
By: ]/;/g{p:L--<..~ ___ l//~-- ~D~te: 5/i Jn"~ 

/'' - j / 

(Engineer) (Date) 

$----------~----~----~--~--------~---------(Line 8 or other- attach explanation of the other amount) 

(Owner) (Date) 

Funding Agency (if applicable) (Date) 



Progress Estimate - Unit Price Work Contractor's Application 
For (Contract): Bedford Avenue Water Line Phase 1A Application 

' 
Number: 6 

Application Period: 
3/29/15 to 4/30/15 Application Date: 5/4/2015 

-' 
A B c D E F G i 

Item Bid Item 
Estimatea 

Value of Work Materials Presently 
Total Completed 

Unit Price Bid Item Value ($) Quantity and Stored to Date %(F/B) Balance to Finish (B-F}. Quantity Installed to Date Stored (not in C) Bid Item No Description Installed (D+E) i 
1 16" Water Line 3000 $ 180.40 $ 541,200.00 3143.5 $ 567,087.40 $ 567,087.40 105% $ (25,887.40} 
2 12" Water Line 4800 $ 86.50 $ 415,200.00 5070 $ 438,555.00 $ 438,555.00 106% $ (23,355.00} 

3 8" Water Line 8705 $ 56.25 $ 489,656.25 3134.5 $ 176,315.63 $ 176,315.63 36% $ 313,340.63 . 

4 Directional Drill 577 $ 1,091.34 $ 629,703.18 577 $ 629,703.18 $ 629,703.18 100% $ -

5 Jack & Bore 30" Casing 187 $ 827.02 $ 154,652.74 187 $ 154,652.74 $ 154,652.74 100% $ -
6 Open Cut 24" Casing 161 $ 620.27 $ 99,863.47 161 $ 99,863.47 $ 99,863.47 100% $ -

7 Sidewalk Replacement 5737 $ 80.61 $ 462,459.57 34 $ 2,740.74 $ 2,740.74 1% $ 459,718.83 I 

8 Private Entrance 9 $ 3,199.33 $ 28,793.97 $ - $ - 0% $ 28,793.97 

9 CG-12 Curb Ramp 8 $ 1,298.46 $ 10,387.68 $ - $ - 0% $ 10,387.68 I 

10 Mobilization 1 $ 195,910.15 $ 195,910.15 1 $ 195,910.15 $ 195,910.15 100% $ -

11 Stake out 1 $ 11,125.00 $ 11,125.00 0.8 $ 8,900.00 $ 8,900.00 80% $ 2,225.00' 
12 Pavement Repair 1 $ 395,000.00 $ 395,000.00 0.3 $ 118,500.00 $ 118,500.00 30% $ 276,500.00 

13 Water Meter 129 $ 1,654.04 $ 213,371.16 59 s 97,588.36 $ 97,588.36 46% $ 115,782.80 

14 Fire Hydrant 26 $ 3,000.00 $ 78,000.00 20 s 60,000.00 $ 60,000.00 77% $ • 18,000.00. 

15 Air release valve 18 $ 3,500.00 s 63,000.00 5 s 17,500.00 s 17,500.00 28% s 45,soo.oo I 

16 Blow Off Valve 2 $ 4,000.00 $ 8,000.00 1 s 4,000.00 $ 4,000.00 SO% $ 4,000.00 

$ - s -

s - $ -

$ - $ - . 

$ - s -

$ - $ -
$ - s -

$ - $ -

$ - $ -
$ - $ -

s - $ -

$ - $ -

$ - $ -

$ - s -

Totals $ 3,796,323.17 $ 2,571,316.67 $ - $ 2,571,316.67 $ 1,225,006.51 
---- --

tperrow
Callout
To be revised

tperrow
Rectangle



Altavista’s 6-acre Petri Dish: 
Testing Sustainable Solutions for 

PCB Contaminated Sediments

Workshop Announcement:

Mission of the event:  
to share knowledge on the state of 
the practice of PCB degradation as 
demonstrated in field scale trials.

followed by a tour of on site research at  
the Town of Altavista’s sediment pond

Jerry Schnoor, Ph.D. 
The University of Iowa

Kevin Sowers, Ph.D.  
The University of Maryland, 

Baltimore County

Jason White, Ph.D.  
The Connecticut Agricultural 

Experiment Station

Louis Licht, Ph.D.  
Ecolotree, Inc.

Speakers 
include:

Technical Presentations: 
June 17 9:30 am - 4:30 pm 

Tour of the Pond:  
June 18 9:30 am - Noon

June 17th & 18th

Location:

The workshop will highlight lab and field work as well as 
research resulting from 3 years of in-situ PCB degradation 

and containment in the Town of Altavista, Virginia’s  
6 acre waste water overflow pond.

Click to Register online http://tinyurl.com/IALR-PCB-Workshop

150 Slayton Ave. | Danville, VA 24540

W
o
r
k
s
h
o
p

http://www.ialr.org/index.php/events/icalrepeat.detail/2015/06/17/90/-/pcb-workshop
http://www.ialr.org/index.php/events/icalrepeat.detail/2015/06/17/90/-/pcb-workshop


◄ Apr 2015 ~ May 2015 ~ Jun 2015 ► 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
     1 

 
2 
1st Saturday Trade Lot 
AOT Cruise In 

3 
 

4 
 

5 
 

6 
 

7 
 

8 
 

9 
 

10 
AVOCA-Mother’s Day 
Tea 

11 
 

12 
Council Meeting 
7:00 pm 
 

13 
 

14 
 

15 
 

16 
 

17 
 

18 
 

19 
 

20 
 

21 
 

22 
TGIF @ Avoca 
5:30 
 
 

23 
 

24 
 

25 
Memorial Day 
Town Offices Closed 

26 
Work Session 
5:00 PM 
 

27 
 

28 
 

29 
 

30 
 

31 
 

Notes: 

 



◄ May 2015 ~ June 2015 ~ Jul 2015 ► 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
 1 

Planning Commission 
5:00 pm 

2 
 

3 
 

4 
 

5 
Uncle Billy’s Day 

6 
Uncle Billy’s Day 

7 
 

8 
 

9 
Council Meeting 
7:00 pm 
 

10 
 

11 
 

12 
 

13 
AVOCA-3RD Annual 
Made in the Shade Craft 
Beer Festival 
UBD 37th Annual Two Miler 

14 
 

15 
 

16 
 

17 
IALR CONFERENCE 
Danville 

18 
Tour of EOP 
LUNCHEON AT TRAIN 
STATION 

19 
TGIF @ Avoca 
5:30 
 

20 
 

21 
 

22 
 

23 
Work Session 
5:00 PM 
 

24 
 

25 
 

26 
 

27 
 

28 
 

29 
 

30 
 

Notes: 

 



Monthly Report to Council  
 
 
Date:  May 12, 2015 
 
To:   Town Council  
 
From:  Dan Witt, Assistant Town Manager 
 
Re:  April Report 
 

 
1. Zoning/Code Related Matters: 

April 2015 Permits 
 

DATE PERMIT # APPLICANT NAME & ADDRESS REASON FOR PERMIT  
15-Apr 012-15 Jessica Erk 1002 Broad St. Home Occupation, Massage Therapy
17-Apr 013-15 Graham Packaging, 103 Odgen Rd. 12 x 12' gazebo
23-Apr 014-15 Kenneth Lambert, 1015 8th Street 24 x 26' garage in back yard  

 
• Mailed approximately 25 grass violation notices.    

 
2. Site Plans Reviewed and/or Approved:  

• Met with Paul Harvey and then worked with Phillip to gather information regarding the 
proposed boat launch site.  

• Approved setbacks for new home on Valley View Drive.    
 

3. Planning Commission (PC) Related: 
• Developed a draft ordinance that would regulate microbreweries, brewpubs and 

similar establishments.  Met with John Eller to review the draft that will go to the 
PC for consideration.  Completed packets for May 11 meeting.          
 

4. AOT Related 
• Nothing noted.         

 
5. ACTS Related 

• Completed and submitted March billing reimbursement request to DRPT for 
 operations.    
• Validated daily ridership and revenue for bus system (April) - see bus report.  
• Completed online March monthly reporting to DRPT. 
• Submitted RTAP reimbursement request for KFH Marketing Plan that will be 

developed for ACTS.  Worked with consultant on the plan.      
• Charles, Carlton, Patricia and Rosco attended 4 hour defensive driver class sponsored 

by VML.  Staff drove bus to allow for training.   
• Received 4 bids for bus shelters and ordered 3 shelters from the low bidder. 
• Attended CTAV board meeting and set up for Roadeo in Harrisonburg.  



• Completed ½ year DBE reporting for DRPT.  
•  

   
6. Projects and Administrative Related: 

• Updated GIC     
• Town Council reports for April meeting and work session. Attended both meetings.   
• Streetscape/infrastructure project: Reviewed and commented on final change order 

submitted by VCP.   
• Participated in the Everbridge training sessions in preparation for implementation of the 

Altavista Alert Notification System.  The system is now live and staff is working to 
market the program so that citizens will sign up.   

• Attended Regional Planner’s Luncheon.  The group is planning a Regional Planners 
meeting, like one held two years ago.  This provides a venue for the planners to meet 
and discuss what each is working on and a really good opportunity to network.  The 
meeting is set for June 4th from 4:00-5:30.  

• Assisted David Garrett to secure quotes for heat pump for PD.  
• Attended Regional Managers’ luncheon at the CAER center in Bedford.  
•  



 
 

April 2015 Altavista Town Council Report  

May 12, 2015  

Staff attended the Southern Economic Development Council’s meet “The site selection consultants”. I 
submitted a report in the April packet.  

The Office of Economic Development conducted a new search for the Main Street Coordinator. Staff 
worked with the career services offices at Randolph College and Lynchburg College. We conducted 
several interviews, five candidates, and narrowed the search to three. After formal interviews with the 
town manager and AOT board members a successful candidate was identified and will begin on June 1, 
2015. The new Main Street Coordinator is Emelyn Gwynn from Lynchburg College. She has a Bachelor of 
Arts in Communications Studies and is currently working in the Office of Economic Development for the 
City of Lynchburg.   

Staff submitted site information for four projects from officials at Region 2000 and the Virginia Economic 
Development Partnership. Two of the projects were in conjunction with the Campbell County Office of 
Economic Development.  Staff also submitted information on the former Intersections call center for 
consideration for a project with officials from VEDP.  

The Office of Economic Development was recognized by officials from the Workforce Development 
Office at CVCC for continued support of the programs at the Community College.   

Staff is working with the Virginia Agricultural Office for the opening of Kvasir Meadworks. The dedication 
ceremony will take place on July 31, 2015.  

Staff attended the April meeting of the Pittsylvania County Board of Superiors meeting to hear an 
update on the development of a feasibility study the County is working on related to the poultry 
industry.  

Staff hosted officials from the Virginia Economic Development Partnership for a community tour of 
Altavista and Campbell County. The delegation toured the former Lane site; the Schrader warehouse; 
and the Deering Ford business park.   

Met with officials from Virginia Community Capitol on potential funding for the AOT “Pop-Up” program 
and loan programs for an applicant in the community.  

Staff attended the Region 2000 Economic Development mangers meeting. The marketing committee 
made recommendations for consideration to the full Region 2000 Alliance board for a name change.  

Staff worked with officials from the CVCC Small Business Development Center on developing business 
plans for two existing businesses in town.  

Staff met with officials at Abbott and toured the plant.  We are working with the Campbell County office 
of Economic Development on closing the incentive agreement the town and the county have with the 
plant.  

Staff met with the plant manager at BGF.  

The Altavista EDA approved two loan applications from the USDA Revolving Loan Fund.  



Altavista Police Department 
Town of Altavista 

510 7th Street 
Altavista, VA 24517 

 

April 2015 Statistics 

• 2    Simple Assaults 
• 1    Aggravated Assault 
• 5    Shoplifting 
• 2    Thefts from Building 
• 1    Theft from Motor Vehicle 
• 1    Burglary 
• 1    Embezzlement 
• 1    Destruction 
• 1    Weapon Law Violation 
• 2    Driving Under the Influence 
• 4    Drunkenness 
• 1    Trespass 
• 12  All other offenses 

 

Case Review: 

**   34 total IBR reportable offenses for the month of April. 

**   19 of the 34 reportable offenses have been cleared by arrest. 

 

Calls for service:  327 

Criminal Arrests:  23 

Traffic Citations Issued: 7 

 

What’s New: 

 Sgt. Penn and Officer Joni organ visited the Altavista Elementary School this month and read a 
story as well as answered questions for some of the First Graders. 

Officer Organ participated in the YMCA Health Fair. 

Officer Organ spoke at the Employee Training Conference sponsored by Prince Charles Home 
Health Care. 



1 
 

 
                         David T. Garrett, Jr. Director of Public Works● P.O. Box 420, Altavista, VA 24517  
                           Telephone: (434) 369-6050 ● Fax: (434) 369-6981 ● dtgarrett@altavistava.gov 

 
 
 

Public Works / Utility Report 
April 2015 

 
During the month of April the Public Works / Utility Crews were busy with the following 
Maintenance, Repairs, and other assorted task. 
These activities reflect the Town Wide Goals of Stewardship, Public Safety and Improving 
Customer Service as well as Improving Altavista’s Environment and Image. 
 

 
Work Orders Process 269 

 
Utility Department - Water Distribution: 

 
○ Located Miss Utility Tickets------------------------------------------------------80 
○ Water Turn On / Turn Off(s)------------------------------------------------------39 
○ Read Monthly Meters--------------------------------------------------------------63 
○ Exchanged Meters------------------------------------------------------------------6 

 
  

 
Utility Department - Sewer Distribution: 
 

○ Sewer Root Cutting------------------------------------------------0 Feet 
○ Sewer Cleaning-----------------------------------------------------0 Feet 
○ Sewer Cleaning Manholes----------------------------------------0 
○ Sewer Video--------------------------------------------------------410 Feet 
○ Sewer Video Manholes--------------------------------------------0 
○ Push Camera Footage----------------------------------------------0 Feet 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:dtgarrett@altavistava.gov


2 
 

Street Department: 
 

○ Mowing---------------------------------------------------------------------------0  Acres 
○ Litter Pick up---------------------------------------------------------------------29 Bags 
○ Weed Control---------------------------------------------------------------------135 Gallons 
○ Sweeping Streets-----------------------------------------------------------------66 Miles  
○ Weekend Trucks------------------------------------------------------------------1 
○ Other Traffic Roadside Maintenance On Streets----------------------------- 607 Hrs                                                                                 

 
Buildings & Grounds and Sanitation: 
    

○ Green Hill Cemetery – Burial-------------------------------------------------3 
○ Green Hill Cemetery – Cremations-------------------------------------------0 
○  Brush Collected Stops----------------------------------------------------------81 Stops 
○  Brush Collected Loads-----------------------------------------------------------7 Loads  
○  Bulk Collection Stops-----------------------------------------------------------124 Stops 
○  Bulk Collection Tonnage-----------------------------------------------------21.23 Tons 
○  Solid Waste Tonnage--------------------------------------------------------87.33 Tons 
○ Labor Hours at Green Hill Cemetery to maintain Grave Sites------------ 51 Hours 
○ Maintain Park Buildings----------------------------------------------------72.50 Man Hours 
○ Maintain Parks, Mowing, Flowers Beds, Weed Control---------------442 Man Hours 

 
Special Projects: 
 

○ PCB Remediation Work 
 

Water Department Report: 
 
      Water Production: 
 

○ Water Plant: 54.3 million gallons of raw water treated. 
○ Water Plant: 41.91 million gallons of finished water delivered. 
○ McMinnis Spring: 8.22 million gallons of finished water treated.  
○ McMinnis Spring: average 283,933 gallons per day and run time hours 17 a day. 
○ Reynolds Spring: 5.69 million gallons of finished water treated. 
○ Reynolds Spring: average 196,300 gallons per day and run time hours 11 a day. 

 
 
      Water Consumption From: 
 

○ Campbell County Utility and Service Authority: 000,000 Gallons 
      
      Water Sold: 
 

○ Town of Hurt 2,582,100 Gallons 
 
 



3 
 

    Water Plant Averages for April 2015 : 
       

○ Weekday: 18.8 hrs / day of production  
1,988,000  gallons treated / day  

○ Weekends:  12.1 / day of production  
1,287,500 gallons treated / day  

  
   Water Plant Projects:  

○ Flushed Out Filter Line 1-5  
○ Cleaned Out Solids Tank 
○ Installed Mixers in Solids Tank 
○ Evaluate Flocculation Mixers 
○ Evaluate Finish Pumps  
○ Started Facility Dudes Program 

 
 

 
Wastewater Department Report 

 
o Received 2nd shipment of Polymer for Press  
o Normal Monthly Work Session with Council  
o Tank Inspection conducted by VML 
o IALR sampled EOP for possible test site 
o Serviced lawn mowers for season 
o Repaired torque switch on #2 Clarifier 
o Repaired #2 Clarifier Motor and Gear box 
o Cleaned Press system pressure valve 
o Replaced hydraulic cylinders on UV wiper system 
o Power outage at plant 4/21/15 (Morning) 
o Power outage at plant 5/1/15   (Afternoon) 
o Receiving dirt for possible future projects in EOP   
o Wastewater Plant NPW system is down  Staff working on repair  
o Sampled industrial users for surcharge and permit compliance  
o Normal plant operation and maintenance 

 
 
 
Sludge Processed               207    wet tons 
Gallons of Water Treated                 68.37 MG 
 
 
Plant Efficiency 
BOD Reduction                             97% 
TSS   Reduction          95%  
 



ACTS RIDER TALLY  
 

 

Calendar Year Totals
Rider Totals Miles Driven Fare Box Revenue *Days Run Ave./per Day

2011 10,919 40,392 3,783.00$   272.5 40

2012 15,265 45,706 5,329.50$   281 54

2013 17,760 45,358 5,721.00$   282.5 63

2014 23,511 47,856 6,924.94$   302.5 78 *Summer Hours initiated

2015 6,527 14,673 2,987.61$  90.5 72 YTD Numbers

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTALS Net Gain
2011 391 590 481 495 551 1,617 1,364 1,499 1,201 805 849 1,076 10,919
2012 813 875 983 872 1,028 2,026 1,850 1,962 1,618 1,176 1,083 979 15,265 140%
2013 939 1,015 968 1,152 1,362 2,272 1,956 2,231 1,705 1,416 1,440 1,304 17,760 116%
2014 1,318 1,253 1,259 1,527 1,486 3,335 3,051 2,575 2,502 1,790 1,587 1,828 23,511 132%
2015 1,644 1,591 1,696 1,596 6,527 123%

* Day is equivalent to 10 hours 


	01 Town Council Agenda May 2015
	02 Staff Report_Recognitions_Presentations
	03 Council Minutes April 14, 2015
	Michael E. Mattox, Mayor
	J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Clerk

	04 Council Minutes April 14, 2015-Budget Work Session
	Michael E. Mattox, Mayor
	J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Clerk

	05 Council Work Session April 28, 2015
	Michael E. Mattox, Mayor
	J. Waverly Coggsdale, Clerk

	06 Check Register April 2015
	07 April 2015 Revenue_Expenditure Report
	08 April 2015 Reserve Balance_Investment Report
	10 Budget Public Hearing Staff Report
	11 Proposed Budget Revisions_May 2015
	12 Proposed Budget Advertisement with Overview
	13 DRO Text Amendment_Staff Report
	13a DRO April Info
	14 DHCD_VATPI Letter of Interest_Staff Report
	14a Staff memo
	14b Va Telcom Planning Initiative letter (2)
	15 Utililty Project Reimbursement Resolution_Staff Report
	15a RESOLUTION OF OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE EXPENDITURES WITH PROCEEDS OF A BORROWING_Project 1B_Main Street (2)
	15b  2015-05-07 AltavistaTown MainStWL-1B Schedule
	15c Main Street 1B Final Cost Estimate 5 7 2015
	15d Melinda Tank HPZ Cost Estimate
	16 Town Managers Report
	16a 2015-05-05 Bedford Ave Ph1A Payment Mtg6 - MINUTES
	16b PCB Workshop Flyer (2)
	17 May-June 2015
	9a  Community Devlopment- Dan Council Report May 12, 2015- Draft
	Monthly Report to Council

	9b ED Report April 2015
	9c April 2015 APD Stats
	9d Monthly Report PW - Utilities -April 2015
	Water Department Report:
	Water Plant: 54.3 million gallons of raw water treated.

	9e ACTS RIDER TALLY April 15



